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About Magnetek
Headquartered in Los Angeles, Magnetek, Inc. is a New York Stock Exchange listed company (NYSE:
MAG) specializing in the application of advanced power-electronic technology to meet the ‘‘uncommon
power’’ needs of the global digital economy.
Magnetek was formed in 1984 through the acquisition of Litton Industries’ Magnetics Group. During the
1980s the Company acquired a number of other electrical equipment companies, and in 1991 joined
forces with Plessey S.p.A., Europe’s largest independent manufacturer of electronic power supplies for
computers. During the 1990s, Magnetek divested its electrical equipment operations in order to focus
exclusively on digital power-electronic products.
Today, Magnetek provides custom and industry-standard power components and systems for
applications ranging from the Power Grid to the Internet. With annual revenues exceeding $200 million, it
ranks among the world’s leading manufacturers of digital electronic power supplies, converters,
inverters, rectifiers, regulators and controls. The Company also builds programmable power and control
systems based on these components, and is a leading provider of power conditioners for fuel cells and
other alternative energy sources.
Magnetek’s power products are used in data processing and data storage, telecom and datacom,
medical and commercial imaging, semiconductor processing and testing, materials handling, people
moving, ‘‘smart’’ appliances, distributed power generation and other applications requiring controllable,
reliable, energy-efficient power. Magnetek operates ISO-certified research and manufacturing facilities
and markets its products through leading distributors in North America, Europe and China.
For more information about Magnetek, visit the Company’s website: http://www.magnetek.com.
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Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
This Annual Report and Form 10-K, including documents incorporated herein by reference, contains
forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
The words ‘‘believe’’, ‘‘expect’’, ‘‘estimate’’, ‘‘anticipate’’, ‘‘intend’’, ‘‘may’’, ‘‘might’’, ‘‘will’’, ‘‘would’’,
‘‘could’’, ‘‘project’’ and ‘‘predict’’, or similar words and phrases generally identify forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements contained or incorporated by reference in this document,
including those set forth in the Chairman’s Letter, the section of this Annual Report entitled
‘‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations’’, and the
section of the Form 10-K entitled ‘‘Description of Business’’ include, but are not limited to, statements
regarding projections of revenues, income or loss, capital expenditures, plans for future operations,
products or services and financing needs or expectations, as well as assumptions relating to the
foregoing.
Forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties which in many cases are
beyond the control of the Company and which cannot be predicted or quantified. As a result, future
events and actual results could differ materially from those set forth in, contemplated by, or underlying
forward-looking statements. Such risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, economic
conditions in general, sensitivity to industry conditions, competitive factors such as technology and
pricing pressures, business conditions in the telecommunications and electronic equipment markets,
international sales and operations, dependence on significant customers, increased materials costs,
risks and costs associated with acquisitions, environmental matters and the risk that the Company’s
ultimate costs of doing business exceed present estimates. A discussion of these and other specific
risks is included in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations section of the Annual Report under the heading ‘‘Risk Factors Affecting the Company’s
Financial Outlook’’.
Forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report and Form 10-K speak only as of the date of
this document or, in the case of any document incorporated by reference, the date of that document. The
Company does not have an obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement
contained or incorporated by reference in these documents to reflect changed assumptions, the
occurrence of unanticipated events or changes to future operating results over time.

Dear Fellow Stockholder:
Fiscal 2003 was an extremely challenging period for everyone in the electronic power industry. Magnetek’s
results reflect that fact. While our revenues grew throughout the year, profits suffered due primarily to product
mix issues, the U.S. dollar’s decline against the euro, losses incurred in the telecom power business, and higher
selling, general and administrative (SG&A) costs.
Revenue in fiscal 2003 totaled $201.8 million, up 7% from $188.2 million in 2002. However, the Company lost
$1.48 per share, including a gain on the termination of a retiree medical plan, increased pension costs, and losses
related to the settlement of a lawsuit with a former lender, the divestiture of our telecom service business and
non-cash asset impairment charges. This compares with net income of $.06 per share in fiscal 2002.
Working capital increased toward the end of 2003 as we carried duplicate inventories while consolidating two
plants in Hungary and expanding our factory in China from 15,000 to 65,000 square feet. Debt also rose as a
result of the working capital increase and capital spending related to our China expansion, as well as our
acquisition of Telemotive Industrial Controls in January and the bank settlement referenced above.
Our balance sheet also reflects the fairly dramatic effects of certain adjustments associated with pension
accounting. Due to declines in equity values and interest rates, many pension plans, including Magnetek’s,
became under-funded from an accounting standpoint during 2002 and 2003. In such cases a minimum pension
liability must be added to long-term obligations with a corresponding reduction in stockholders’ equity.
Although history suggests that equity markets will recover and interest rates will rise over time, the impact on
equity in the interim can be dramatic.
This does not mean that our pension funding is inadequate or that the pension plan poses a near-term liquidity
problem. Plan assets exceeded $120 million at fiscal year-end, and after a September contribution of
approximately $2.6 million in Company stock, no mandatory contributions will be required through fiscal 2008
under current regulations.
Factors Affecting Fiscal 2003 Performance
Clearly, Magnetek did not perform up to our expectations in fiscal 2003. From an operating standpoint the year
became progressively tougher for us because our telecom service business—acquired as a possible pull-through
for power system sales—lost more and more money as the year went on. Telecom service cost us $.10 a share at
the bottom line.
The year also became progressively tougher for Magnetek compared to most U.S.-based competitors because of
the dollar’s decline against the euro. This reduced gross margins by 17 percentage points on products
manufactured in Europe and sold in dollars. Of course, we recognize that currency issues are part of doing
business internationally. However, while others benefited from the weak dollar, it cost us approximately $.17 a
share because of our large manufacturing presence in Europe.
Planned increases in research and development (R&D) and selling costs also affected fiscal 2003 results. Much
of the increase was associated with investments to establish global distribution channels. While we needed to
make those investments, they penalized fiscal 2003 earnings by about $.09 a share.
Finally, asset impairment and other one-time items cut earnings by $1.11 per share, net.
Add them up, and you see the roots of our fiscal 2003 profit problem. We believe that fiscal 2004 will be less
challenging, at least in these respects, for the following reasons.
Subsequent to fiscal 2003, we divested the service portion of our telecom power business, eliminating its losses
while actually increasing the pull-through potential for hardware sales by outsourcing installation services, when
required, from various contractors.
Regarding currency, we are selectively taking actions to reduce the impact of exchange-rate fluctuations, and we
are producing more of the products that will be sold for dollars in dollar-equivalent jurisdictions, such as China.
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As for SG&A, we have certain expenses, such as pension costs, that have risen. But we fully expect our
investments in marketing and development to result in at least a breakeven in 2004, and to provide positive
returns from then on.
Finally, we do not anticipate any more asset impairment charges.
Actions Affecting Liquidity, Profitability and Cash Flow
Though many of the factors that undermined Magnetek’s performance are behind us or should abate during
fiscal 2004, decisive actions have been taken to strengthen the balance sheet and get back into the black.
Since the beginning of the new fiscal year, we have completed our China expansion, reduced our working capital
and cut our debt.
We have replaced our former $16-million domestic bank line with a new $19-million facility backed by our
domestic assets. This bank line will remain in effect through fiscal 2006, unless replaced or extended. We also
recently negotiated a new European credit line providing nearly $10 million of additional availability on top of
approximately $20 million in European credit already in place.
Based on current plans and business conditions, we believe that our borrowing capacity under the new domestic
bank line, together with our separate European credit lines and internally generated cash flows, affords a good
foundation for financing Magnetek’s future operations and other commitments.
Regarding profitability, we believe we will be operating above breakeven before fiscal year-end. To do so,
however, we must continue to grow revenues and increase gross margins.
As of mid-September, Magnetek’s order backlog stood at approximately $54 million, and fiscal 2004 bookings
exceeded billings by 10%.
The divestiture of the Telecom service business could add as much as two percentage points to our fiscal 2004
consolidated gross margin. Based on its expected sales and cost savings, our expanded China factory could add
two more percentage points to gross margins. These actions alone should push gross margins into the mid 20%
range.
Additional margin improvement should come from product mix as we shift toward more systems sales,
expansion of sales through distribution—a new channel for Magnetek that carries attractive margins—and
actions to lessen the impact of currency fluctuations on our European margins.
Although we may not see the full impact for a couple of quarters, I believe we are taking the actions necessary to
improve gross margins and get back into the black. With our return to profitability, our China expansion
completed and stronger working capital management, cash flow should turn positive as well.
Plans for Future Growth and Profitability
I am convinced that we have the right strategy not only to return to profitability, but also to lead the power
technology industry.
Magnetek’s strategy calls for power component innovation, forward integration into systems, and market
diversity. Technologically, our custom product R&D enables us to push the envelope of power density, reliability
and on-board ‘‘intelligence’’. Forward integration allows us to incorporate our power components into power
systems commanding higher margins. Market diversity keeps us from being overly dependent on any single
market, and it provides us with the greatest array of growth opportunities.
We now have the physical facilities in place to implement our strategy on a worldwide scale, and I am confident
we have a management team capable of executing it. But that does not imply perpetuating the status quo.
To take full advantage of this Company’s potential we will continue to redeploy our physical and human
resources. We will market our products, both components and systems, on a continental basis, reflecting
differences in geographic markets. But we will utilize our manufacturing facilities for all products on a global
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scale for maximum efficiency. The unfavorable impact of currency fluctuations in fiscal 2003 underlines the
importance of this redeployment, and our rapid expansion in China demonstrates our commitment to it.
We must also stand by our commitment to diversity — in emerging markets especially — because market
diversity is what most distinguishes Magnetek from other ‘‘power supply’’ companies.
Let me conclude with a timely example. Recently, a number of blackouts have occurred in North America and
Europe due to inadequate utility generating capacity and problems with the electric power transmission grid.
These events should serve to accelerate the move to distributed power generation and monitoring, in which we
have major stakes.
Magnetek is already the world’s leading provider of power conditioning systems for commercial fuel cells with
over 32 Megawatts in the field, and we have engineering contracts underway with a number of leading solar and
wind generator companies. In fiscal 2003, we also introduced our own micro-turbine power plant for use on rail
and subway cars. The first units are now being tested on the Italian railroad and are performing very well.
We also have the technology — in fact the products, called ‘‘HiQgrid’’ and ‘‘Alba’’ (dawn) — capable of
monitoring power distribution networks and changing the direct current produced by most alternative energy
sources into the alternating current needed by electricity users.
Sooner than many imagined, the Utility market and others that we serve, including Transportation and
Consumer Products, may equal or exceed Telecom and Information Technology in terms of demand for highly
reliable, digital power components and systems such as ours. And we will be the first in line to meet the demand.
I believe fiscal 2004 will be the year of recovery for Magnetek. Beyond that, we have the strategy and the plan in
place to achieve your Company’s full potential.

Andrew G. Galef
Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Statement of Operations Data
For the years ended June 30,
(Amounts in thousands,
except per share data)
Net Sales
Income (loss):
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income (loss)
Per common share – basic:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Net income (loss)
Per common shares – diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Net income (loss)

2003

2002

2001

2000

1999

$201,782

$188,224

$298,260

$293,575

$231,339

$ (34,844) $
–

1,408
–

$

9,083 $ 1,282
(3,350)
41,170

$ (34,844) $

1,408

$

5,733

$ (24,318)
62,791

$ 42,452

$ 38,473

$
$

(1.48) $
(1.48) $

0.06
0.06

$
$

0.40
0.25

$
$

0.05
1.71

$
$

(0.79)
1.25

$
$

(1.48) $
(1.48) $

0.06
0.06

$
$

0.39
0.25

$
$

0.05
1.70

$
$

(0.79)
1.25

Net loss for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 includes after-tax charges of $39,037 for asset impairment, a $3,275
after-tax charge for settlement of litigation, a $997 after-tax loss on the sale of the Company’s telecom service business
and a $17,218 after-tax gain from termination of the Company’s retiree medical plan.
Net income for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001 includes a $4,114 after-tax loss on the sale of the Company’s
Lighting and Transformer business included in discontinued operations.
Net income for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000 includes a $35,125 after-tax gain on the sale of the Company’s
Motor and European Lighting business included in discontinued operations.
Net income for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 includes a $50,988 after-tax gain on the sale of the Company’s
Generator business included in discontinued operations. Continuing and discontinued operations results in fiscal 1999
include charges aggregating $21,564 and $12,836 respectively, relating to downsizing, inventory adjustments, severance
costs and other asset write-downs.

Balance Sheet Data
As of June 30,
(Amounts in thousands)
Total assets
Long-term debt, including current portion
Common stockholders’ equity
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2003

2002

2001

2000

1999

$280,651
26,702
79,671

$304,891
4,124
142,819

$321,754
10,134
183,707

$400,673
64,040
184,206

$576,220
179,181
204,885

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
Magnetek, Inc. (‘‘Magnetek’’ or ‘‘the Company’’) is a global provider of digital power-electronic products, including
electronic converters, inverters, rectifiers and systems. These products are used primarily in industrial, telecommunications,
data processing, consumer, imaging, alternative energy, power generation and other applications requiring precise, efficient,
reliable power. We believe that with our technical and productive resources Magnetek is well positioned to respond to
increasing demand for such power. Magnetek operates in a single business segment, Digital Power Products, which includes
two broad product categories, Components and Systems.
During fiscal 2003, Magnetek’s operating results were adversely impacted by continued weakness in key end markets,
primarily telecommunications and, to a lesser extent, information technology. We were able to post a 7% sales increase as a
result of broader market diversification and strong growth in products with consumer applications, as well as the acquisition
of Telemotive Industrial Controls in the third fiscal quarter. Magnetek’s strategy will continue to emphasize diversity in both
our product offerings and our targeted markets. Despite the sales gain, we experienced margin pressure in our European
operation as the U.S. dollar weakened versus the Euro during the fiscal year, thereby compressing margins on U.S. dollardenominated sales made by that operation. Our telecom power business suffered substantial operating losses due to
continued sales declines and market price pressures. Subsequent to fiscal year-end, we divested the service portion of this
business to focus on hardware and systems with an emphasis on wireless applications.
Increased operating expenses also impacted results in fiscal 2003. Research and development expense was up 14%
compared to the prior year as we continued to invest in developing new products and systems for both existing and new
markets. We will continue to invest in R&D going forward, although we do not anticipate a continued increase in overall
R&D expense. Selling, general and administrative expense was up 29% compared to fiscal 2002 with continued investment
in sales and marketing programs and capabilities as well as the addition of Telemotive operating expense and increased
employee benefit costs, primarily pension expense. As a result of lower interest rates and a lower than expected return on
assets held in the pension trust (see Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) pension expense increased by
approximately $2.6 million in fiscal 2003. While we will continue our efforts to control general and administrative expense,
we will see an additional increase in annual pension expense of approximately $2.3 million in fiscal 2004 as compared to
fiscal 2003. The change in annual pension expense going forward will depend on future interest rate levels and values in
equity and fixed income markets.
Our efforts to improve margins include manufacturing cost reduction programs, most notably an expansion of our
manufacturing operation in China and selected outsourcing. We are also focusing our development and marketing
capabilities on higher margin systems applications and markets, such as alternative energy, with reduced emphasis or
elimination of lower margin component products and less profitable segments, such as the telecom service and consumer
markets. We will continue to pursue opportunities to consolidate administrative operations and functions, however future
profitability is highly dependent upon improvement in revenues and gross margins. Although conditions may continue to be
challenging, we believe that the strategy we are pursuing will provide future opportunities for growth and improved
operating performance.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Net Sales and Gross Profit
Net sales for the Company increased 7.2% to $201.8 million in fiscal 2003 from $188.2 million in fiscal 2002. Net sales in
fiscal 2002 declined 36.9% from $298.3 million in fiscal 2001. The increase in fiscal 2003 was due to higher sales of products
with consumer applications, the acquisition of Telemotive and the effect of currency translation. The decrease in fiscal 2002
reflects a substantial slow-down in product demand in the telecommunications sector. Excluding the impact of a standard
drives product line that was divested in January 2001, net sales in fiscal 2002 decreased 25.6% from fiscal 2001. Gross profit
in fiscal 2003 declined to $37.0 million (18.3% of sales) compared to $43.6 million (23.1% of sales) in fiscal 2002 and
$76.8 million (25.7% of sales) in fiscal 2001. Fiscal 2003 gross profit includes a $4.7 million charge for the write-down of
telecom related inventory. Gross profit was also impacted by depressed results in the telecom products and services area, as
well as the weaker U.S. dollar versus the Euro with respect to the Company’s European operation. Gross profit in fiscal
2002 declined due to the sale of standard drives ($10 million) and reduced demand in the telecommunications sector.
Operating Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expense (including research and development expenditures) was $51.7 million (25.6% of
sales) in fiscal 2003 compared to $41.3 million (21.9% of net sales) in fiscal 2002 and $55.8 million (18.7% of net sales) in
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fiscal 2001. The increase in operating expenses from fiscal 2002 reflects continued investment in research and development
and expanding marketing and sales capabilities, higher employee benefit costs and the acquisition of Telemotive. The
decline in operating expenses in fiscal 2002 from fiscal 2001 included the elimination of $8.1 million of expenses associated
with the standard drives product line, with the balance of the reduction due to reduced support costs on the lower revenue
base in fiscal 2002.
Gain from Termination of Retiree Medical Plan
Fiscal 2003 results include a non-recurring pretax gain of $27.8 million ($17.2 million after tax) related to the termination of
the Company’s retiree medical plan (see Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).
Goodwill and Fixed Asset Impairment
During the second quarter of fiscal 2003, management determined that there were indicators of impairment in the carrying
value of goodwill based on the decline in our market capitalization and continued depressed conditions in the
telecommunications industry. We performed an interim impairment test in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 142 based on updated forecasts of operating results and cash flows, and recorded a
$33.4 million charge for goodwill impairment (see Note 1 and Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). We
also recorded a $0.9 million charge for impairment of other assets, mainly fixed assets. The charges related exclusively to
the Company’s telecommunications business and eliminated the carrying value of goodwill for that business.
Interest and Other Expenses
Interest expense was $1.5 million in fiscal 2003 compared to $0.2 million in fiscal 2002 and $4.3 million in fiscal 2001. The
increase in fiscal 2003 was due to higher debt levels as a result of cash operating losses, the Telemotive acquisition and a
litigation settlement payment. In fiscal 2002, the Company repaid all of its domestic bank debt with the proceeds from
divestitures of discontinued operations. Interest expense in fiscal 2001 was recorded in accordance with accounting
principles that require the allocation of interest expense between continuing and discontinued operations based upon the
amount of debt that can be attributed to these operations. Other expense of $4.3 million in fiscal 2003 included a
$3.3 million charge related to the settlement of litigation and a $1.0 million charge related to the sale of the telecom service
business. The decline in other expense in 2002 from 2001 reflects the adoption of SFAS No. 142 in the first quarter of fiscal
2002. As a result, there was no goodwill amortization recorded in fiscal 2002, compared to expense of $2.2 million in fiscal
2001.
Net Income (Loss)
In fiscal 2003, the Company recorded a net loss of $34.8 million, or $1.48 per share on both a basic and diluted basis,
compared to fiscal 2002 net income of $1.4 million or $0.06 per share, basic and diluted. The Company recorded net income
of $5.7 million or $0.25 per share on both a basic and diluted basis in fiscal 2001. Fiscal 2003 results reflect the impact of the
gain on termination of the retiree medical plan, and charges related to goodwill and asset impairment, litigation settlement
and the sale of the telecom service business as described above. In spite of the pretax loss, the Company recorded tax
expense. The tax expense (non-cash) relates to the gain on the termination of the retiree medical plan partially offset by tax
benefit on a portion of the pretax loss. Due to the net deferred tax position on the balance sheet, we were unable to record
a tax benefit on the majority of the fiscal 2003 pretax loss. Our net deferred tax position consists of $4.8 million of domestic
net deferred tax assets offset by $4.5 million in foreign net deferred tax liabilities. We believe the deferred tax assets are
realizable through global tax planning strategies that provide an ability to offset existing domestic tax assets with the foreign
tax liabilities as well as through future taxable income. We anticipate that no tax benefit will be recorded in future periods
until results reflect pretax income. Fiscal 2001 results reflect net income of $9.1 million from continuing operations and a
$3.4 million loss from discontinued operations (including a $4.1 million loss on the sale of the Company’s Lighting and
Transformer businesses). Continuing operations earned $0.39 per diluted share in 2001 with discontinued operations
accounting for a loss of $0.14 per diluted share.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
As of June 30, 2003, long-term borrowings (including current portion) were $26.7 million compared to $4.1 million as of
June 30, 2002. The increase in long-term borrowings was due to funding the Company’s operating losses, the $4.3 million
acquisition of Telemotive (see Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) in the third fiscal quarter and a
$3.3 million litigation settlement payment to Bank of America in the fourth fiscal quarter. Net cash used in operating
activities (prior to capital expenditures and excluding the settlement with Bank of America) was $9.1 million primarily due
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to cash operating losses. Capital expenditures in fiscal 2003 were $9.0 million, mainly related to upgrading our existing
capital infrastructure and expansion of capacity in our China operation.
There are no current requirements or plans for additional major capacity expansion and we currently anticipate capital
expenditures in fiscal 2004 to be less than $10 million. The expected amount of capital expenditures could change
depending upon changes in revenue levels, our financial condition and the general economy.
Subsequent to fiscal year-end, the Company replaced its existing credit facility with an asset based Credit Agreement with
Bank One. The Credit Agreement provides for an aggregate lending commitment of up to $19 million. Available
borrowings are determined by a borrowing base as defined in the agreement, supported mainly by levels of domestic
accounts receivable and inventory (see Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Subsequent to fiscal
year-end the Company’s European subsidiary entered into an agreement with a European bank to provide Euro 7 million in
borrowings secured by the subsidiary’s land and building. The Company’s European subsidiary also maintains other
borrowing arrangements with local banks to support working capital needs.
Primarily as a result of declines in interest rates and stock market equity values during the fiscal year, as of June 30, 2003
the accumulated benefit obligation for the Company’s defined benefit pension plan exceeded plan assets by approximately
$51.4 million. No contributions to the plan were made during fiscal 2003. During the two years ended June 30, 2002, the
Company made aggregate contributions to the plan of $24.4 million (approximately $15.5 million in cash and the remainder
in the Company’s common stock). During fiscal 2004, the Company intends to make a contribution to the plan
approximating $2.6 million of the Company’s common stock. Based upon this contribution and current contribution credits
available to the Company under pension funding regulations, actuarial projections indicate no mandatory contributions to
the plan would be required through fiscal year 2008. Depending upon changes in asset values and interest rates, as well as
any discretionary contributions by the Company in the interim period, required contributions in periods subsequent to fiscal
year 2008 could be significant.
The Company is subject to certain potential environmental and legal liabilities associated primarily with the past divestiture
of discontinued operations (see Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).
The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as of June 30, 2003.
Based upon current plans and business conditions, management believes that global borrowing capacity under its various
credit facilities and internally generated cash flows will be sufficient to fund anticipated operational needs, capital
expenditures and other near-term commitments.
Critical Accounting Policies
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires estimates and judgments by management that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, revenues,
expenses, and related disclosures. Such estimates are based upon historical experience and other assumptions believed to be
reasonable given known circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. On an ongoing basis, the Company
evaluates and updates its estimates, including those related to accounting for inventories, goodwill, pension benefits and
reserves for litigation and environmental issues. Management considers the following policies critical to understanding the
Company’s financial position and results of operations.
Inventories
The Company’s inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method, including material, labor and factory overhead. The Company identifies potentially obsolete and excess inventory
by evaluating overall inventory levels in relation to expected future requirements and market conditions, and provisions for
excess and obsolete inventory and inventory valuation are recorded accordingly. In assessing the ultimate realization of
inventories, the Company is required to make judgments as to future demand requirements and compare those with the
current or committed inventory levels. If future demand requirements are less favorable than those projected by
management, additional inventory write-downs may be required.
Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill
The Company periodically evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment.
Impairment charges are recorded in operating results when the undiscounted future expected cash flows derived from an
asset are less than the carrying value of the asset.
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The Company periodically evaluates the carrying value of goodwill for impairment. The Company has identified its Telecom
Power, Power Electronics and Industrial Controls groups as reporting units under SFAS No. 142. In assessing potential
impairment, management makes significant estimates and assumptions regarding the discounted future cash flows of the
Company’s reporting units to determine the fair value of those reporting units.
Such estimates include, but are not
limited to, projected future operating results, working capital ratios, cash flow, market discount rates and tax rates. If these
estimates change in the future, or if actual circumstances vary significantly from these assumptions, this could result in
additional goodwill impairment charges.
Pension Benefits
The valuation of the Company’s pension plan requires the use of assumptions and estimates to develop actuarial valuations
of expenses and assets/liabilities. These assumptions include discount rates, investment returns and mortality rates. Changes
in assumptions, or significant differences between actual future discount rates, investments returns and mortality rates from
those assumptions, could potentially have a material impact on the Company’s expenses and related funding requirements.
Reserves for Litigation and Environmental Issues
The Company periodically records the estimated impacts of various conditions, situations or circumstances involving
uncertain outcomes. The accounting for such events is prescribed under SFAS No. 5, ‘‘Accounting for Contingencies.’’ SFAS
No. 5 defines a contingency as ‘‘an existing condition, situation, or set of circumstances involving uncertainty as to possible
gain or loss to an enterprise that will ultimately be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur.’’
SFAS No. 5 does not permit the accrual of gain contingencies under any circumstances. For loss contingencies, the loss must
be accrued if (1) information is available that indicates it is probable that the loss has been incurred, given the likelihood of
uncertain events; and (2) that the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
The accrual of a contingency involves considerable judgment on the part of management. The Company uses its internal
expertise, and outside experts, as necessary, to help estimate the probability that a loss has been incurred and the amount
(or range) of the loss.
Risk Factors Affecting the Company’s Financial Outlook
A continuing low level of demand for power products in the telecommunications and information technologies industries
had an adverse effect on the Company’s operating results in fiscal 2003. If demand in one or both of these industries
deteriorates further in subsequent periods, the adverse effect on Magnetek’s results of operations could continue. In
addition, the Company is subject to all of the business risks facing public companies, including business cycles and trends in
the general economy, financial market conditions, changes in interest rates, demand variations and volatility, potential loss
of key personnel, supply chain disruptions, government legislation and regulation, and natural causes.
In addition to variations in demand for power products in the markets Magnetek serves, management believes that the most
significant potential risk factors faced by the Company, not necessarily in order of priority, are the following:
Dependence on Customers
Magnetek’s sales to its top five customers represented approximately 30% of its net sales in fiscal 2003. The loss of any such
customers or significant decreases in any such customers’ levels of purchases from Magnetek could have an adverse effect
on the Company’s business.
Competitive Size
The power supplies industry includes more than 1,000 enterprises, according to MicroTech Consultants, an industry
research organization. Of these, Magnetek competes directly only with manufacturers of complex, non-commodity power
products, which management estimates constitute less than 5% of the industry. However, certain of Magnetek’s competitors
are significantly larger and have substantially greater resources than the Company. Further, given the current excess
capacity and the decline in valuations of companies within the industry, the risk of consolidation in the industry could result
in larger competitors than exist today.
In power systems, Magnetek competes with crane and hoist drive manufacturers and drive system integrators, elevator drive
manufacturers and control system integrators, mining machinery drive builders, power inverter builders and telecom power
systems builders. The total number of such enterprises with whom Magnetek competes directly is considered to be fewer
than 100. However, certain of Magnetek’s competitors are significantly larger and have substantially greater resources than
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the Company, and some are global in scope, whereas Magnetek currently competes primarily in the North American
market.
International Business
Magnetek’s international operations are subject to risks associated with changes in local economic and political conditions,
codes and standards, currency exchange rates and restrictions, regulatory requirements and taxes.
Since international sales currently account for nearly half of Magnetek’s revenue, currency exchange rates impact the
Company’s results. This is partially a currency translation issue with no economic impact on actual results. However, a
fluctuation in exchange rates between a foreign currency and the U.S. dollar can have an economic impact on revenue and
profit. During fiscal 2003, Magnetek was impacted by such currency fluctuations, primarily the weakening of the U.S. dollar
against the Euro. Additional weakening in the value of the dollar against other currencies, primarily the Euro, could have
an adverse effect on the Company’s financial results.
Intellectual Property
Management believes that Magnetek’s intellectual property in the area of digital power-electronics is equal or superior to
its competitors’ and does not know of any new technologies that could cause a shift away from digital power-electronic
solutions. However, as a technology-based company in an industry characterized by short product life cycles, Magnetek is
highly dependent on both patented and proprietary intellectual property. Therefore, major advancements in digital powerelectronic technology by competitors or the advent of technologies obviating digital power-electronic solutions could have
an adverse effect on the Company’s business.
Likewise, the Company could be adversely affected financially should it be judged to have infringed upon the intellectual
property of others. Magnetek is currently defending against one such claim alleging infringement of electronic ballast
patents (see Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). The Company was engaged in no other patent
infringement litigation at June 30, 2003.
Environmental Issues
Magnetek has agreed to provide indemnification against environmental liabilities and potential liabilities associated with
operations that it has divested, including certain motor, generator, lighting ballast, transformer and drive manufacturing
operations. Such liabilities, if any, could have an adverse effect on the Company’s financial position. Further, Magnetek has
been indemnified against potential environmental liabilities and potential liabilities associated with operations that it has
acquired, including lighting ballast, transformer, capacitor and crane brake manufacturing operations that were
subsequently divested. If not borne by the indemnifiers such liabilities, if any, could have an adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position (see Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).
Acquisitions
Magnetek’s business strategy has historically called for growth and diversification in the digital power-electronic products
business. Pursuing acquisition opportunities and attempting to integrate and manage acquired businesses requires
significant resources, including management time and skill, and these efforts may detract from the management or
operation of these and the Company’s other businesses. Additionally, acquired businesses may not perform as anticipated,
thereby causing Magnetek’s operating results to suffer.
QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK
The Company is exposed to market risks in the areas of foreign exchange and interest rates. To mitigate the effect of such
risks, the Company selectively uses specific financial instruments. Hedging transactions can be entered into under Company
policies and procedures and are monitored monthly. Company policy clearly prohibits the use of such financial instruments
for trading or speculative purposes. A discussion of the Company’s accounting policies for derivative financial instruments is
included in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies under Note 1 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
Interest Rates
The fair value of the Company’s debt was $26.7 million and $4.1 million at June 30, 2003 and June 30, 2002, respectively.
The fair value of the Company’s debt is equal to the borrowings outstanding from domestic and foreign banks and small
amounts owed under capital lease arrangements. Prospectively, the Company does not consider there to be material risk
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due to changes in the interest rate structure of borrowing rates applicable to such debt. For the Company’s debt outstanding
at June 30, 2003 and 2002, a hypothetical 10% adverse change in interest rates would not have had a material impact on the
Company’s pre-tax earnings and cash flow due to relatively low variable interest rates.
Foreign Currency Exchange Rates
The Company may selectively enter into foreign exchange contracts to hedge certain balance sheet exposures in Europe.
The Company had no foreign currency contracts outstanding at June 30, 2003 and 2002.
In relation to its overall manufacturing capability, the Company’s manufacturing base in Europe is substantial, with plants
in Italy and Hungary. Exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the Euro can have an impact of the Company’s operating
results for products produced in Europe whose sales are denominated in U.S dollars. The Company is taking actions to
lessen this impact by more closely matching costs and revenues in common currencies through purchasing and
manufacturing strategies. However, future movement in currency exchange rates, primarily between the U.S. dollar and the
Euro, could have a material impact on future operating results.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended June 30,
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Net sales
Cost of sales

2003

2002

2001

$201,782
164,799

$188,224
144,663

$298,260
221,494

43,561
9,770
31,513
–
–

76,766
9,417
46,359
–
–

Gross profit
Research and development
Sales, general and administrative
Gain from termination of retiree medical plan
Asset impairment

36,983
11,145
40,588
(27,771)
34,358

Income (loss) from operations
Interest expense
Other expense (income), net

(21,337)
1,545
4,342

2,278
194
(224)

20,990
4,335
1,972

Income (loss) from continuing operations before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes

(27,224)
7,620

2,308
900

14,683
5,600

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Discontinued operations Income from operations (net of taxes)
Loss from discontinued operations

(34,844)

1,408

9,083

–
–

Net income (loss)

$ (34,844) $

Per common share basic:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations

$

Net income (loss)

–
–

764
(4,114)

1,408

$

5,733

(1.48) $
–

0.06
–

$

0.40
(0.15)

$

(1.48) $

0.06

$

0.25

Per common share diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations

$

(1.48) $
–

0.06
–

$

0.39
(0.14)

Net income (loss)

$

(1.48) $

0.06

$

0.25

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of June 30,
(Amounts in thousands)

2003

2002

Assets
Current assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,427 in 2003 and $2,432 in 2002
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Prepaids and other assets
Total current assets

$

1,680
46,745
48,843
6,734
6,174

$

4,816
41,532
45,338
6,348
2,419

110,176

100,453

Property, plant and equipment:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment

1,185
12,862
97,676

1,060
10,894
81,213

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

77,929

61,194

Net property, plant and equipment

33,794

31,973

Goodwill, less accumulated amortization of $9,720 in 2003 and 2002
Prepaid pension
Other assets

63,067
58,325
15,289

95,533
59,986
16,946

$ 280,651

$304,891

$ 35,496
13,452
805

$ 25,386
18,559
407

49,753

44,352

25,897
9,180
109,681
6,469

3,717
39,640
74,363
–

237
106,541
80,959
(108,066)

236
106,216
115,803
(79,436)

79,671

142,819

$ 280,651

$304,891

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Other long-term obligations
Pension benefit obligations
Deferred income taxes
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000 shares authorized 23,535 and 23,511 shares issued and
outstanding in 2003 and 2002
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total stockholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(Amounts in thousands)
Accumulated
Additional
Other
Common Stock
paid-in
Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount
capital
Earnings
Loss
Balance, June 30, 2000

23,073

$231

$100,399

$108,662

Exercise of stock options

301

3

2,589

–

–

Shares retired from trust

(180)

(2)

–

–

–

Shares sold from trust
Shares issued for acquisition
Share repurchase / retirement

$ (25,086)

Total
$184,206
2,592
(2)

–

–

216

–

–

216

598

6

6,658

–

–

6,664

(11)

(12,342)

–

–

(12,353)

(1,075)

Tax benefit for options exercised

–

–

431

–

–

431

Net income

–

–

–

5,733

–

5,733

Translation adjustments

–

–

–

–

Comprehensive income - 2001

–

–

–

–

22,717

$227

$ 97,951

$114,395

252

3

2,172

–

–

2,175

(264)

(3)

(3,030)

–

–

(3,033)

Balance, June 30, 2001
Exercise of stock options
Share repurchase / retirement
Employee stock purchase plan

(3,780)
–
$ (28,866)

(3,780)
1,953
$183,707

2

–

17

–

–

17

900

9

8,892

–

–

8,901

–

1

883

–

–

884

(96)

(1)

(883)

–

–

(884)

Tax benefit for options exercised

–

–

214

–

–

214

Net income

–

–

–

1,408

–

1,408

Translation adjustments

–

–

–

–

6,394

6,394

Minimum pension liability

–

–

–

–

(56,964)

(56,964)

Comprehensive loss - 2002

–

–

–

–

23,511

$236

$106,216

$115,803

Employee stock purchase plan

24

–

75

–

–

75

Shares issued to trust

65

1

250

–

–

251

–

1

250

–

–

251

(65)

(1)

(250)

–

–

(251)

Net loss

–

–

–

–

(34,844)

Translation adjustments

–

–

–

–

7,087

7,087

Minimum pension liability

–

–

–

–

(35,717)

(35,717)

Comprehensive loss - 2003

–

–

–

–

23,535

$237

$106,541

$ 80,959

Pension plan contribution
Deferred compensation plan
Share value trust

Balance, June 30, 2002

Deferred compensation plan
Share value trust

Balance, June 30, 2003

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(34,844)

–
$ (79,436)

–
$(108,066)

(49,162)
$142,819

(63,474)
$ 79,671

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended June 30,
(Amounts in thousands)

2003

Cash flows from operating activities:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from continuing operations to net cash used in
operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Gain from termination of retiree medical plan
Goodwill and other asset impairment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities of continuing operations

2001

$(34,844) $ 1,408

$ 9,083

8,861
9,369
9,442
275
17
2,958
(27,771)
–
–
39,037
–
–
2,092 (18,232) (41,610)

Total adjustments
Net cash used in operating activities

2002

22,494

(8,846) (29,210)

(12,350)

(7,438) (20,127)

(4,306)
–
(8,957)

(1,691) (33,348)
24,264 133,995
(7,626) (9,006)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase and investment in companies, net of cash acquired
Proceeds from sale of businesses and other assets
Capital expenditures
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

(13,263)

14,947

91,641

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of trust shares
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan
Repurchase of common stock
Borrowing under (repayment of) bank and other long-term obligations
Increase in deferred financing costs

–
251
75
–
22,578
(427)

–
214
2,175
2,592
17
–
(3,917) (12,353)
(6,010) (53,906)
(268)
–

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

22,477

(8,003) (63,453)

Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operations

(3,136)

Cash flows from discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations
Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash used in discontinued operations:
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities of discontinued operations
Capital expenditures
Net cash used in discontinued operations

$

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash at the beginning of the year

–

–
–
–

–
–
–

10,608
(5,701)
(8,765)

–

$ (3,094)

–

$ 1,680

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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8,061

–

(3,136)
4,816

Cash at the end of the year

(494)

$

(494)
5,310
$ 4,816

764

4,967
343
$ 5,310

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in the notes to consolidated financial statements are expressed in thousands except share and per share data)
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Magnetek, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the ‘‘Company’’ or
‘‘Magnetek’’). All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant areas requiring management estimates
include the following key financial areas:
Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable represent receivables from customers in the ordinary course of business. The Company is
subject to losses from uncollectible receivables in excess of its allowances. The Company maintains allowances for
doubtful accounts for estimated losses from customers’ inability to make required payments. In order to estimate
the appropriate level of this allowance, the Company analyzes historical bad debts, customer concentrations,
current customer creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in customer payment patterns. If the
financial conditions of the Company’s customers were to deteriorate and to impair their ability to make payments,
additional allowances may be required in future periods. The Company’s management believes that all
appropriate allowances have been provided.
Inventories
The Company’s inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out
(FIFO) method, including material, labor and factory overhead. Inventory on hand may exceed future demand
either because the product is obsolete, or the amount on hand is more than can be used to meet future needs. The
Company identifies potentially obsolete and excess inventory by evaluating overall inventory levels. In assessing
the ultimate realization of inventories, the Company is required to make judgments as to future demand
requirements and compare those with the current or committed inventory levels. If future demand requirements
are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required.
Reserves for Litigation and Environmental Issues
The Company periodically records the estimated impacts of various conditions, situations or circumstances
involving uncertain outcomes. The accounting for such events is prescribed under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 5, ‘‘Accounting for Contingencies.’’ SFAS No. 5 defines a contingency as ‘‘an
existing condition, situation, or set of circumstances involving uncertainty as to possible gain or loss to an
enterprise that will ultimately be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur.’’
SFAS No. 5 does not permit the accrual of gain contingencies under any circumstances. For loss contingencies, the
loss must be accrued if (1) information is available that indicates it is probable that the loss has been incurred,
given the likelihood of uncertain events; and (2) that the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
The accrual of a contingency involves considerable judgment on the part of management. The Company uses its
internal expertise, and outside experts, as necessary, to help estimate the probability that a loss has been incurred
and the amount (or range) of the loss.
Income Taxes
The Company uses the liability method to account for income taxes. The preparation of consolidated financial
statements involves estimating the Company’s current tax exposure together with assessing temporary differences
resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred
tax assets and liabilities, which are included in the consolidated balance sheets. An assessment of the recoverability
of the deferred tax assets is made, and a valuation allowance is established based upon this assessment.
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Federal income taxes are not provided currently on undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries since the
Company presently intends to reinvest any earnings overseas indefinitely.
Pension Benefits
The valuation of the Company’s pension plan requires the use of assumptions and estimates to develop actuarial
valuations of expenses and assets/liabilities. These assumptions include discount rates, investment returns and
mortality rates. Changes in assumptions and future investments returns could potentially have a material impact
on the Company’s expenses and related funding requirements.
Revenue Recognition
The Company’s policy is to record and recognize sales only upon shipment. Amounts billed to customers for shipping costs
are reflected in net sales; shipping costs incurred are reflected in cost of sales.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Additions and improvements are capitalized at cost, whereas expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense as incurred. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets principally on the
straight-line method (machinery and equipment normally five to ten years, buildings and improvements normally ten to
forty years).
Goodwill
The Company adopted SFAS No. 142, ‘‘Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets’’, effective July 1, 2001. Under SFAS No. 142,
goodwill and other intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer amortized but are subject to annual
impairment tests, or interim impairment tests if certain indicators arise.
Based upon the Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 142, no goodwill amortization was recorded in the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2003 and 2002. Amortization expense relating to goodwill was $2,183 for the year ended June 30, 2001.
Management reviews the valuation of goodwill at least annually, using discounted future cash flow analysis of each of the
Company’s reporting units.
Accounting For Stock Options
As permitted under SFAS No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,’’ the Company has elected to follow
Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25 ‘‘Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees’’ and related
interpretations in accounting for stock based awards to employees. Under APB No. 25, the Company recognizes no
compensation expense with respect to such awards when the exercise price is equal to or greater than the market price at
the date of grant.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In July 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 146, ‘‘Accounting for Costs Associated
with Exit or Disposal Activities’’, which nullified Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue 94-3, ‘‘Liability Recognition for
Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring).’’ SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized
when the liability is incurred, with the exception of termination of certain leases and contracts. Under EITF 94-3, a liability
for an exit cost was recognized at the date of an entity’s commitment to an exit plan. The provisions of this Statement are
effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002. The Company does not expect the
adoption of SFAS No. 146 to have a material impact on its results of operations or financial position.
In November 2002, the FASB issued interpretation No. 45 (FIN 45), ‘‘Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.’’ FIN 45 requires certain
guarantees to be measured at fair value upon issuance and recorded as a liability. The measurement and recognition
requirements of FIN 45 are effective for guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. In addition, the
interpretation expands disclosure requirements regarding guarantees issued by an entity, including tabular presentation of
the changes in the entity’s recorded product warranty liability. The disclosure requirements are effective for the Company in
its annual financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 (see Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements).
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In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and
Disclosure’’, which amends Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.’’ SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and requires more prominent and more frequent disclosures
in the financial statements of the effects of stock-based compensation. The provisions of SFAS No. 148 are effective for
fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002 and the interim disclosure provisions are effective for interim periods beginning
after December 15, 2002. The Company has provided the required disclosures for interim periods beginning with the fiscal
quarter ended March 31, 2003.
In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46), ‘‘Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (VIE).’’ FIN
46 requires that if a company holds a controlling financial interest in a VIE, the assets, liabilities and results of the VIE’s
activities should be consolidated in the entity’s financial statements. The Company does not expect FIN 46 to have a
material impact on its results of operations or financial position.
In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, ‘‘Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivatives and Hedging’’, which amends
and clarifies accounting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts
and for hedging activities under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, ‘‘Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities.’’ SFAS No. 149 is generally effective for derivative instruments, including derivative
instruments embedded in certain contracts, entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships
designated after June 30, 2003. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 149 to have a material impact on
its results of operations or financial position.
In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, ‘‘Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristic of Both
Liabilities and Equity’’. This statement establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures in its statement of
financial position certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. SFAS No. 150 requires that
an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within the scope of SFAS No. 150 as a liability (or an asset in some
circumstances) because that financial instrument embodies an obligation of the issuer. SFAS No. 150 is effective for
financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first
interim periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 150 to have a
material impact on its results of operations or financial position.
Research and Development
Expenditures for research and development are charged to expense as incurred and aggregated $11,145, $9,770 and $9,417
for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
Foreign Currency Translation
The Company’s foreign entities’ accounts are measured using local currency as the functional currency. Assets and liabilities
are translated at the exchange rate in effect at year-end. Revenues and expenses are translated at the rates of exchange
prevailing during the year. Unrealized translation gains and losses arising from differences in exchange rates from period to
period are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity.
Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company uses derivative financial instruments to reduce financial market risks. These instruments are used to hedge
foreign currency and interest rate market exposures. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for
speculative or trading purposes. The accounting policies for these instruments are based on the Company’s designation of
such instruments as hedging transactions. The criteria the Company uses for designating an instrument as a hedge include
the instrument’s effectiveness in risk reduction and the matching of the derivative to the underlying transaction. The
resulting gains or losses are accounted for as part of the transactions being hedged, except that losses not expected to be
recovered upon the completion of the hedge transaction are expensed.
Deferred Financing Costs
Costs incurred to obtain financing are deferred and included in the other assets in the consolidated balance sheet. Deferred
financing costs are amortized over the term of the financing facility, and related amortization expense was $275, $17 and
$683 for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Earnings Per Share
In accordance with SFAS No. 128, ‘‘Earnings Per Share,’’ basic earnings per share are computed using the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per common share incorporate the incremental
shares issuable upon the assumed exercise of stock options as if all exercises had occurred at the beginning of the fiscal year.
Fiscal Year
The Company uses a fifty-two, fifty-three week fiscal year ending on the Sunday nearest June 30. For consistency of
presentation, all periods are presented as if the year ended on June 30. Fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 contained 52
weeks.
2. Acquisitions/Divestitures
During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the Company committed to a plan to divest its telecom
service business. Management determined that the assets and liabilities to be sold constituted a disposal group under SFAS
No. 144 and that all of the ‘‘assets held for sale’’ criteria outlined in SFAS No. 144 were met as of the end of June 2003. As
of June 30, 2003, the net book value of the disposal group was $2.1 million, comprised of $2.7 million in assets and
$0.6 million in liabilities. The expected proceeds from the sale were $1.2 million, and as a result, an estimated loss on the
sale of $0.9 million plus an additional amount of $0.1 million in closing costs, were recorded in fiscal year 2003 within other
expense in the consolidated statement of operations. The assets held for sale were reflected in the consolidated balance
sheet as of June 30, 2003 in prepaid expenses in an amount of $1.8 million, representing the net of the $2.7 million in assets
and the estimated loss of $0.9 million. The liabilities held for sale of $0.6 million and the estimated closing costs of
$0.1 million were classified as other accrued liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2003. Subsequent to
June 30, 2003, the Company finalized the sale and received proceeds of approximately $1.2 million for its telecom service
business.
On December 30, 2002, the Company purchased all of the outstanding shares of MXT Holding, Inc. for approximately
$4.3 million in cash. MXT Holdings, Inc, is a holding company whose wholly owned subsidiary, Maxtec International Corp.
is engaged in the development, manufacture and sale of wireless remote controls and anti-collision systems for overhead
cranes, hoists, monorail systems, conveyors, locomotives, and other material handling applications under the name
Telemotive Industrial Controls (‘‘Telemotive’’). Telemotive reported revenue of approximately $10.0 million in its most
recently completed fiscal year. Acquisition costs in excess of net assets acquired, approximately $2.2 million, were recorded
as goodwill. The acquisition was financed from the Company’s revolving credit facility.
On May 24, 2002, the Company purchased the net assets of LAB Communications, Inc. for cash of approximately
$1.7 million (net of cash acquired of approximately $0.2 million). The Company acquired assets of approximately
$1.7 million and assumed liabilities of $1.3 million. The purchase price has been allocated to the net assets acquired based
upon their estimated fair market values. The acquisition was financed from the Company’s available cash balances.
On March 2, 2001, the Company acquired ADS Power Resource, Inc., for approximately $8.8 million in cash and 597,691
shares of the Company’s stock, valued at approximately $6.7 million. The Company acquired assets of approximately
$4.7 million (including cash balances approximating $0.4 million) and assumed liabilities of $0.9 million. Costs in excess of
net assets acquired, approximately $11.8 million, were recorded as goodwill. The cash portion of the purchase price was
financed from the Company’s revolving credit facility.
On January 29, 2001, the Company sold its Standard Drives business to Yaskawa Electric of America for approximately
$27.6 million in cash. The business was part of the Company’s Drives and Industrial Controls business and was responsible
for assembling, marketing, selling, servicing and repairing Yaskawa general purpose AC drives and related products.
Proceeds from the sale were used for debt repayment.
On November 13, 2000, the Company purchased all of the outstanding shares of J-Tec, Inc. for approximately $24.0 million.
The Company acquired assets of approximately $13.1 million (including cash balances approximating $2.9 million) and
assumed liabilities of $4.6 million. Post closing adjustments were completed in the third quarter of fiscal 2001 based upon
the change in net assets acquired at closing versus a contractually agreed upon level of transferred net assets. Subsequent to
post closing adjustments, total acquisition costs in excess of net assets acquired, approximately $19.2 million, were recorded
as goodwill. J-Tec, Inc. is a power systems integrator serving the domestic telecommunications industry. The acquisition was
financed from the Company’s revolving credit facility.
All of the above acquisitions were accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and accordingly the purchase
price has been allocated to the net assets acquired based upon their estimated fair market values.
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Operating results were included, or excluded, for all of the acquisitions, or divestitures in the Company’s consolidated
results effective as of the acquisition or divestiture dates. The following pro forma information includes the operations of
the acquired/divested entities for fiscal year 2001 as if the respective transactions had occurred on the first day of the fiscal
year immediately preceding the year of acquisition or divestiture. Pro forma information has not been presented for fiscal
years 2003 and 2002, as results would not differ materially from historical results.
For the years ended June 30,
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
2003

(pro forma)
2001

2002

Net sales
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Net income (loss)

$201,782 $188,224
(34,844)
1,408
$ (34,844) $ 1,408

$273,241
10,198
$ 6,848

Continuing operations
Basic EPS
Diluted EPS

$
$

(1.48) $
(1.48) $

0.06
0.06

$
$

0.45
0.44

Net income (loss)
Basic EPS
Diluted EPS

$
$

(1.48) $
(1.48) $

0.06
0.06

$
$

0.30
0.30

The pro forma results of operations do not purport to represent what the Company’s results would have been had such
transactions occurred at the beginning of the periods presented or to project the Company’s results of operations in any
future period.
3. Discontinued Operations
For the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 there were no results from discontinued operations. The results of the
Company’s electrical products businesses (Generators, Motors, Lighting and Transformers) are included within
discontinued operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001.
On June 15, 2001 the Company sold its Lighting business to Universal Lighting Technologies, Inc., a subsidiary of Littlejohn
Fund II, L.P., and on June 29, 2001 sold its Transformer business to American Circuit Breaker Corporation. Pre-tax
proceeds received from the sale of the Lighting business were $105 million and were used to repay bank obligations and
repurchase shares of the Company’s common stock in fiscal year 2001.
The operating results of discontinued operations are as follows:
Year ended June 30

2003

2002

2001

Net sales
Income before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes

$–
–
–

$–
–
–

$353,803
1,164
400

Income from discontinued operations

$–

$–

$

764

Interest expense of $3.5 million was allocated to discontinued operations in fiscal year 2001, in accordance with EITF 87-24,
‘‘Allocation of Interest to Discontinued Operations’’. Taxes for fiscal year 2001 were allocated using the same overall rate
for the Company for that fiscal year.
Net income for the year ended June 30, 2001 includes a $4,114 (including a tax benefit of $2,600) loss on the sale of the
Company’s Lighting and Transformer businesses, resulting in a net loss of $3,350 in discontinued operations for fiscal year
2001.
4. Goodwill
The Company adopted SFAS No. 142, ‘‘Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets’’, effective July 1, 2001. Under SFAS No. 142,
goodwill is no longer amortized but rather reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently if certain indicators arise.
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If the Company had accounted for goodwill under SFAS No. 142 for all periods presented, net income (loss) and earnings
(loss) per share would have been as follows:
2003

2002

2001

Reported net income (loss)
Add back goodwill amortization net of tax

$(34,844) $1,408
–
–

$5,733
1,340

Adjusted net income (loss)

$(34,844) $1,408

$7,073

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Reported net income (loss)
Goodwill amortization net of tax

$

(1.48) $ 0.06
–
–

$ 0.25
0.06

Adjusted net income (loss)

$

(1.48) $ 0.06

$ 0.31

As a result of the decline in the Company’s market capitalization in the first quarter of fiscal year 2003, the continuing
decline in the telecommunications market, and anticipated reduced demand of telecom power systems in the future, the
Company determined that there were indicators of impairment in the carrying value of goodwill related to acquisitions
made within the past two fiscal years in the telecom industry. Accordingly, during the second quarter of fiscal 2003, the
Company performed an interim test for goodwill impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 142. Upon completing the
interim impairment tests, the Company recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $33.4 million related to the telecom
acquisitions.
The Company’s impairment tests, which consist primarily of discounted cash flow analyses, indicated no impairment in the
other reporting units. Assumptions used in the analyses are based upon projected results that the Company considers
reasonable and appropriate in light of historical performance and anticipated future conditions.
The changes in the carrying value of goodwill by reporting unit, net of accumulated amortization of $9,720, are as follows:
Telecom
Power

Power
Electronics

Industrial
Controls

Total

Balance at June 30, 2002
Purchase price adjustments and reclassifications
Currency translation
Impairment charge

$36,301
(2,859)
–
(33,442)

$33,509
–
1,549
–

$25,723
2,246
40
–

$ 95,533
(613)
1,589
(33,442)

Balance at June 30, 2003

$

$35,058

$28,009

$ 63,067

–

5. Inventories
Inventories at June 30, consist of the following:

Raw materials
Work-in-process
Finished goods

2003

2002

$26,994
15,217
6,632

$29,201
10,747
5,390

$48,843

$45,338

6. Long-Term Debt and Bank Borrowing Arrangements
Long-term debt at June 30, consists of the following:
2003
Revolving bank loans
Miscellaneous installment notes, capital leases and other obligations at rates ranging from 1.8
percent to 8.0 percent, due through 2009
Less current portion

20

$21,384

2002
$

–

5,318

4,124

26,702
805

4,124
407

$25,897

$3,717

Bank Borrowing Arrangements
At June 30, 2003, the Company had an agreement with a group of banks to lend up to $16,000 under a revolving loan facility
through December 17, 2003. Amounts outstanding at June 30, 2003 under this agreement were $9,250 and bore interest at
the banks’ prime lending rate plus one and three-quarters percent (5.75% at June 30, 2003). Subsequent to fiscal year end,
the Company replaced this facility with an asset based credit agreement (‘‘Credit Agreement’’) with Bank One. The
aggregate lending commitment under the Credit Agreement is $19,000 with available borrowings determined by a
borrowing base as defined in the agreement, supported primarily by levels of domestic accounts receivable and inventory.
Borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest at the bank’s prime lending rate plus one percent or, at the
Company’s option, the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus three and one-quarter percent. These rates may be
reduced or increased annually based on the level of a defined fixed charge coverage ratio. The Company is required to pay a
commitment fee of 0.5 percent on the unused available commitment.
Borrowings under the Credit Agreement are secured by substantially all of the Company’s North American assets. The
Credit Agreement contains certain provisions and covenants which, among other things, prohibits the payment of cash
dividends and repurchases of common stock, limit the amount of future indebtedness and capital expenditures and require
the Company to maintain specified levels of EBITDA and fixed charge coverage.
The Company’s European subsidiary has revolving credit arrangements with various banks primarily to finance working
capital needs. Available borrowings under these arrangements aggregate approximately Euro 20,000 depending in part
upon levels of accounts receivable. Borrowings outstanding under these arrangements were $17,452 at June 30, 2003 and
bore interest at various rates, generally tied to LIBOR or EURIBOR (ranging from 2% to 8% at June 30, 2003).
Subsequent to fiscal year-end the Company’s European subsidiary entered into an agreement with a European bank to
provide borrowings secured by the subsidiary’s land and building over a ten year period. Borrowings under the agreement
bear interest at EURIBOR plus one and one-half percent. The initial commitment to lend under this agreement is Euro
7,000, with the commitment amount reduced ratably on a quarterly basis beginning March 31, 2004 and ending
September 30, 2013.
Aggregate principal maturities on long-term debt outstanding at June 30, 2003 are as follows:
Year ended June 30
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
Thereafter

$

805
1,651
10,148
892
720
12,486

$26,702
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7. Earnings (Loss) Per Share
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share.
2003
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations
Loss on sale of discontinued businesses (net of taxes)

2002

2001

$(34,844) $ 1,408
–
–
–
–

$ 9,083
764
(4,114)

Net income (loss)
Weighted average shares for basic earnings per share
Basic earnings (loss) per share
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations
Loss on sale of discontinued businesses (net of taxes)

$(34,844) $ 1,408
23,522
22,517

$ 5,733
22,548

$

(1.48) $
–
–

0.06
–
–

$

0.40
0.03
(0.18)

Basic earnings (loss) per share
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations
Loss on sale of discontinued businesses (net of taxes)

$

(1.48) $

0.06

$

0.25

$(34,844) $ 1,408
–
–
–
–

$ 9,083
764
(4,114)

Net income (loss)
Weighted average shares for diluted earnings per share
Effect of dilutive stock options

$(34,844) $ 1,408
23,522
22,517
–
471

$ 5,733
22,548
605

Weighted average shares for diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations
Loss on sale of discontinued businesses (net of taxes)

23,522

22,988

23,153

$

(1.48) $
–
–

0.06
–
–

$

0.39
0.03
(0.17)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

$

(1.48) $

0.06

$

0.25

Shares issuable under stock option agreements have been excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share for
fiscal year 2003 because the effect would be anti-dilutive.
8. Fair Values of Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts of certain financial instruments such as cash, annuity contracts and borrowings under revolving credit
agreements approximate their fair values.
9. Asset Impairment Charges
The Company recorded asset impairment charges related to its telecom business aggregating $39,037 in the second quarter
of fiscal 2003. The charges consisted of the following: $33,442 for goodwill; $4,679 for inventory; $577 for fixed assets and
$339 for accounts receivable. The inventory charge is included in cost of sales and the remaining charges are included in
asset impairment in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.
10. Income Taxes
Income tax expense (benefit) is allocated in the financial statements as follows:
Year ended June 30

2003

2002

2001

Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to continuing operations
Discontinued operations

$7,620
–

$900
–

$ 5,600
(2,200)

Total

$7,620

$900

$ 3,400
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The expense (benefit) for income taxes applicable to continuing operations is as follows:
Year ended June 30

2003

Current:
Federal
State
Foreign
Deferred:
Federal
State and Foreign

$

2002

–
319
326

$

6,727
248

2001

(89) $
–
472
1,429
4,121
7,351

(816)
(2,788)

$7,620

$

(1,739)
(1,441)

900

$ 5,600

A reconciliation of the Company’s effective tax rate to the statutory Federal tax rate for income (loss) from continuing
operations is as follows:

Year ended June 30

2003
Amount
%

Provision (benefit) computed at the statutory rate
State income taxes, net of federal benefit
Foreign tax rates in excess of federal statutory rate
Nondeductible goodwill impairment
Benefit due to federal tax law change
Losses not benefited
Other – net

$ (9,528) 35.0 $ 808
35.0 $ 5,139
35.0
207
(0.8)
289
12.5
873
5.9
63
(0.2)
145
6.3
1,077
7.3
11,705 (43.0)
–
–
–
–
–
–
(1,154) (50.0)
–
–
5,109 (18.8)
794
34.4
(3,063) (20.9)
64
(0.2)
18
0.8
1,574
10.7
$ 7,620

2002
Amount
%

(28.0) $

900

2001
Amount
%

39.0

$ 5,600

38.0

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries was approximately $(24), $3,655 and
$14,632 for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001.
Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the
Company’s deferred tax liabilities and assets for continuing operations as of June 30, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:
Year ended June 30

2003

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization (including differences in the basis of acquired assets)

2002

$ (6,469) $ (4,704)

Total deferred tax liabilities

(6,469)

(4,704)

Deferred tax assets:
Inventory and other reserves
Postretirement medical benefit obligation
Net operating loss carryforward

7,089
–
49,232

6,564
11,617
42,781

56,321
(49,587)

60,962
(49,910)

Total gross deferred tax assets
Less: valuation allowance
Net deferred tax asset

$

265

$ 6,348

Due to the uncertainty surrounding the timing of realizing the benefits of its deferred tax assets in future tax returns, the
Company has recorded a valuation allowance against its otherwise recognizable deferred tax assets. The net deferred tax
asset position consists of $4.8 million of domestic net deferred tax assets offset by $4.5 million in foreign net deferred tax
liabilities. The Company believes the deferred tax assets are realizable through global tax planning strategies that provide
an ability to offset existing domestic tax assets with the foreign tax liabilities as well as through future taxable income.
The Company has operating loss carryforwards for tax purposes of $141,000 and $121,000 as of June 30, 2003 and 2002
respectively, expiring between fiscal years 2013 and 2023.
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11. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases
The Company leases certain facilities and machinery and equipment primarily under operating lease arrangements. Future
minimum rental payments under noncancelable operating leases as of June 30, 2003 total $30,256 and are payable in future
fiscal years as follows: $5,858 in 2004; $4,715 in 2005; $2,627 in 2006; $1,915 in 2007, $1,860 in 2008, and $13,281 thereafter.
Aggregate future minimum rentals to be received under noncancelable subleases as of June 30, 2003 total $15,645.
For the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, rent expense was $6,994, $7,325 and $4,994 respectively, while sublease
rental income was $3,058, $2,878 and $1,939 respectively.
Litigation – Product Liability
The Company is a party to a number of product liability lawsuits, all of which have arisen in connection with discontinued
business operations of Magnetek. When the Company sold off these business operations, it agreed to defend and indemnify
the different purchasers of these operations in respect of certain product liability claims. The Company is presently
defending a number of product liability claims in connection with these indemnification obligations. After December 15,
2003, none of these purchasers will be entitled to make any further claims against the Company under these indemnification
obligations. The Company will, however, remain liable for valid claims made before that date. All of the pending product
liability cases are being aggressively defended by the Company, and management believes that its insurers will bear all
liability, if any, that exceeds applicable deductibles, and that none of these proceedings individually or in the aggregate will
have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.
The Company has been named, along with numerous other defendants, in asbestos-related lawsuits. The Company has
never produced asbestos-containing products and is either contractually indemnified against liability for asbestos-related
claims or believes that it has no liability for such claims, all of which arise from business operations the Company acquired
but no longer owns. While the outcome of these cases cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company is aggressively
seeking to be dismissed from the proceedings and does not believe the proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will
have a material adverse effect on its results of operations or financial position.
Litigation – Patent Infringement
In April 1998, Ole K. Nilssen filed a lawsuit in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Illinois alleging
infringement by the Company of seven of his patents pertaining to electronic ballast technology, and seeking unspecified
damages and injunctive relief to preclude the Company from making, using or selling products allegedly infringing his
patents. The Company denied that its products infringed any valid patent and filed a response asserting affirmative
defenses, as well as a counterclaim for a judicial declaration that its products do not infringe the patents asserted by
Mr. Nilssen and also that the asserted patents are invalid. In April 2003, the lawsuit and counterclaims were dismissed with
prejudice and both parties agreed to submit limited issues in dispute to binding arbitration before an arbitrator with a
relevant technical background. Settlement discussions have occurred from time to time, and although the Company will
continue to assert what it believes are strong defenses at arbitration, an unfavorable decision could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial position, cash flows or results of operations.
Environmental Matters – General
From time to time, the Company discovered the existence of hazardous substances at certain facilities associated with
previously owned businesses and responded as necessary to bring the facilities into compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. Upon sale of the businesses, the Company agreed, in some cases, to indemnify the buyers against
environmental claims associated with the divested operations, subject to various conditions and limitations. Remediation
activities, including those related to the Company’s indemnification obligations, did not involve material expenditures
during the fiscal year 2003.
The Company has also been identified by the United States Environmental Protection Agency and certain state agencies as
a potentially responsible party for cleanup costs associated with alleged past waste disposal practices at several previously
owned facilities and offsite locations. Its remediation activities as a potentially responsible party were not material in the
fiscal year 2003. Although the materiality of future expenditures for environmental activities may be affected by the level
and type of contamination, the extent and nature of cleanup activities required by governmental authorities, the nature of
the Company’s alleged connection to the contaminated sites, the number and financial resources of other potentially
responsible parties, the availability of indemnification rights against third parties and the identification of additional
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contaminated sites, the Company’s estimated share of liability, if any, for environmental remediation, including its
indemnification obligations, is not expected to be material.
Century Electric (McMinnville, Tennessee)
Prior to the Company’s purchase of Century Electric, Inc. (‘‘Century Electric’’) in 1986, Century Electric acquired a
business from Gould Inc. (‘‘Gould’’) in May 1983 that included a leasehold interest in a fractional horsepower electric
motor manufacturing facility located in McMinnville, Tennessee. Gould agreed to indemnify Century Electric from and
against liabilities and expenses arising out of the handling and cleanup of certain waste materials, including but not limited
to cleaning up any polychlorinated biphenyls (‘‘PCBs’’) at the McMinnville facility (the ‘‘1983 Indemnity’’). The presence of
PCBs and other substances, including solvents, in the soil and in the groundwater underlying the facility and in certain
offsite soil, sediment and biota samples has been identified. The McMinnville plant is listed as a Tennessee Inactive
Hazardous Waste Substance Site and plant employees were notified of the presence of contaminants at the facility. Gould
has completed an interim remedial excavation and disposal of onsite soil containing PCBs and a preliminary investigation
and cleanup of certain onsite and offsite contamination. The Company believes the cost of further investigation and
remediation (including ancillary costs) are covered by the 1983 Indemnity. The Company sold its leasehold interest in the
McMinnville plant in August 1999 and while the Company believes that Gould will continue to perform substantially under
its indemnity obligations, Gould’s substantial failure to perform such obligations could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position, cash flows or results of operations.
Effect of Fruit of the Loom Bankruptcy
The Company acquired the stock of Universal Manufacturing Company (‘‘Universal’’) from a predecessor of Fruit of the
Loom (‘‘FOL’’), and the predecessor agreed to indemnify the Company against certain environmental liabilities arising
from pre-acquisition activities. Environmental liabilities covered by the indemnification agreement include completion of
additional cleanup activities, if any, at the Bridgeport, Connecticut facility (sold in connection with the sale of the
transformer business in June 2001) and defense and indemnification against liability related to offsite disposal locations
where Magnetek may have a share of potential response costs. In 1999 FOL filed a petition for Reorganization under
Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code and the Company filed a proof of claim in the proceeding for obligations related to the
environmental indemnification agreement. In November 2001, the Company and FOL entered into an agreement involving
the allocation of certain potential tax credits and Magnetek withdrew its claims in the bankruptcy proceeding. Although the
Company believes that FOL has substantially completed the obligations required by the indemnification agreement, its
ability to set aside any remaining obligations to the states of Connecticut and New Jersey through bankruptcy, or the
discovery of additional environmental contamination at the Bridgeport facility could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations.
Letters of Credit
The Company had approximately $3,768 of outstanding letters of credit as of June 30, 2003. The Company is permitted to
issue up to $10,000 of letters of credit under its Credit Agreement.
12. Stock Option Agreements
The Company has three active stock option plans (the ‘‘Plans’’), two of which provide for the issuance of both incentive
stock options (under Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986) and non-qualified stock options at exercise prices
not less than the fair market value at the date of grant, and one of which only provides for the issuance of non-qualified
stock options at exercise prices not less than the fair market value at the date of grant. One of the Plans also provides for
the issuance of stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, unrestricted stock, restricted stock rights and performance units,
and one of the Plans also provides for the issuance of incentive bonuses and incentive stock. The total number of shares of
the Company’s common stock authorized to be issued upon exercise of the stock options and other stock rights under the
Plans is 4,750,000. Options granted under two of the Plans vest in three or four equal annual installments, and options
under the third Plan vest in two equal annual installments. The Company also has options outstanding under prior plans
from which grants are no longer made.
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A summary of certain information with respect to options under the Plans and prior plans follows:
Year ended June 30

2003

2002

2001

Options outstanding, beginning of year
Options granted
Options exercised
Weighted average exercise price
Options cancelled

5,812,845 4,983,265 4,638,909
1,558,400 1,645,569 1,191,500
–
(252,041) (301,488)
$
– $
8.63 $
8.60
(853,884) (563,948) (545,656)

Options outstanding, end of year
Weighted average price

6,517,361
$ 10.27

5,812,845
$ 11.27

4,983,265
$ 11.59

Exercisable options

4,288,653

3,449,229

2,848,374

The following table provides information regarding exercisable and outstanding options as of June 30, 2003.

Range of exercise price per share

Exercisable
Weighted
average
exercise
Options
price per
exercisable
share

Outstanding
Weighted
Weighted
average
average
exercise
remaining
Options
price per contractual
outstanding
share
life (years)

Under $10.00
$10.00 – $12.50
$12.51 – $15.00
Over $15.00

2,003,695
685,406
495,445
1,104,107

$ 8.64
10.91
13.32
17.15

3,594,031
1,323,778
495,445
1,104,107

$ 7.51
10.87
13.32
17.15

7.48
7.33
3.64
4.15

Total

4,288,653

$11.73

6,517,361

$10.27

6.59

As permitted under SFAS No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,’’ the Company has elected to follow
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, ‘‘Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees’’ (APB No. 25) in accounting for
stock-based awards to employees. Under APB No. 25, the Company generally recognizes no compensation expense with
respect to such awards.
Pro forma information regarding net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share is required by SFAS No. 123 for awards
granted in fiscal years after December 31, 1994 as if the Company had accounted for its stock-based awards to employees
under the fair value method of SFAS No. 123. The fair value of the Company’s stock-based awards to employees was
estimated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in
estimating the fair value of traded options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, the BlackScholes model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including expected stock price volatility. Because the
Company’s stock-based awards to employees have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and
because changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s opinion, the
existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its stock-based awards to employees.
The fair value of the Company’s stock-based awards to employees was estimated assuming no dividends, using the following
assumptions:

2003
Expected life (years)
Expected stock price volatility
Risk-free interest rate

6.1
48.3%
3.6%
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Options
2002
6.1
46.4%
4.8%

2001
5.9
39.1%
5.9%

For pro forma purposes, the estimated fair value of the Company’s stock-based awards to employees is amortized over the
options’ vesting period. The Company’s pro forma information follows:
(Thousands except per share amounts)
Net income (loss) – as reported
Net income (loss) – pro forma
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share – as reported
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share – pro forma

2003

2002

2001

$(34,844)
$(37,222)
$ (1.48)
$ (1.58)

$ 1,408
$(3,255)
$ 0.06
$ (0.14)

$5,733
$2,802
$ 0.25
$ 0.12

In fiscal year 2003, a total of 1,558,400 options were granted with exercise prices equal to the market price of the stock on
the grant date. The weighted average exercise price was $6.02 and the average fair value of the options was $2.86.
In fiscal year 2002, a total of 1,645,569 options were granted with exercise prices equal to the market price of the stock on
the grant date. The weighted average exercise price was $10.60 and the average fair value of the options was $5.46. In fiscal
year 2001, a total of 1,191,500 options were granted with exercise prices equal to the market price of the stock on the grant
date. The weighted average exercise price was $8.65 and the average fair value of the options was $4.11.
13. Employee Benefit Plans
Benefit obligations at year-end, fair value of plan assets and prepaid (accrued) benefit costs for the years ended June 30,
2003 and 2002 were as follows:
Pension Benefits
Other Benefits
2003
2002
2003
2002
Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Plan participants’ contributions
Amendments / termination
Actuarial (gain) loss
Curtailment gain
Benefits paid

$ 150,961 $ 148,065 $ 13,720 $ 13,172
669
674
1
2
10,877
10,965
233
952
10
22
270
1,454
–
–
(13,174)
–
19,697
5,446
(203)
333
(610)
–
–
–
(9,897)
(14,211)
(847)
(2,193)

Benefit obligation at end of year

$ 171,707

Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Plan participants’ contributions
Benefits paid

$ 135,913 $ 148,464 $
(5,695)
(9,288)
20
10,926
10
22
(9,897)
(14,211)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

$ 120,351

$

–

$

Funded Status
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss
Unrecognized prior service cost

$ (51,356) $ (15,048) $
109,681
74,635
–
399

–
–
–

$(13,720)
(11,352)
(4,793)

Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost

$ 58,325

$

–

$(29,865)

Amounts Recognized in Statement of Financial Position
Prepaid benefit cost
Accrued benefit liability
Intangible asset
Accumulated other comprehensive income

$ 58,325 $ 59,986 $
(109,681)
(74,363)
–
399
109,681
73,964

–
–
–
–

$
–
(29,865)
–

Net amount recognized

$ 58,325

–

$(29,865)

Weighted-Average Assumptions as of June 30
Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increase

6.125%
9.50%
4.50%

27

$ 150,961

$ 135,913

$ 59,986

$ 59,986
7.375%
9.50%
4.50%

$

$

–

$ 13,720

– $
–
–
–
577
739
270
1,454
(847)
(2,193)

N/A
N/A
N/A

–

7.375%
N/A
N/A

Under SFAS No. 87, ‘‘Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,’’ when the accumulated benefit obligation (‘‘ABO’’) exceeds the
fair value of the plan assets, a minimum liability (net of related income tax benefit) must be established on the balance sheet
with a corresponding amount in other comprehensive income (loss) in shareholders’ equity. The minimum pension liability
must also include any prepaid pension asset balance (the amount by which contributions to a plan have exceeded expense
recorded under SFAS No. 87) as of the measurement date. Pursuant to SFAS No. 87, the Company recorded a minimum
pension liability of $109,681 and $74,363 at June 30, 2003 and 2002 respectively. These amounts, net of tax benefits of
$17,000, have been recorded as a reduction to equity in ‘‘Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss’’ on the Company’s
balance sheet as of June 30, 2003 and 2002. Effective June 30, 2003, the pension plan was frozen and no future
compensation credits will be accrued to participants’ individual accounts. Participant accounts will continue to be credited
with interest.
Pension plan assets include 1,226,900 shares of Company common stock valued at $3,218 as of June 30, 2003.
Net periodic postretirement benefit costs (income) for pension and other benefits for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002
and 2001 were as follows:
Pension Benefits
Other Benefits
2003
2002
2001
2003 2002
2001
Components of Net
Periodic Benefit Cost (Income)
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of transition amount
Amortization of prior service cost
Recognized net actuarial (gain) loss

$

669 $
674 $ 1,438 $ 1 $
2 $
6
10,877 10,965 10,952 233
952
916
(12,500) (13,587) (13,703)
–
–
–
–
(263)
(263)
–
–
–
51
53
161 (156) (624) (624)
2,235
1,212
1,003 (535) (2,388) (1,143)

Net periodic benefit cost (income)
Curtailment/settlement (gain) loss

$ 1,332 $
349

(946) $ (412) $(457) $(2,058) $ (845)
–
1,098
–
–
(43)

Net benefit cost (income)

$ 1,681 $

(946) $

686 $(457) $(2,058) $ (888)

The curtailment/settlement gain or loss resulted from the following:
Fiscal 2003: The freezing of benefit accruals under the pension plan program.
Fiscal 2001: The sale of the Standard Drives, Lighting and Transformer businesses.
Effective September 30, 2002, the Company terminated its retiree medical and life insurance programs, resulting in a pretax
gain of $27,771 in fiscal year 2003.
In addition to the defined benefit retirement plans, the Company contributes to a defined contribution (401k) savings plan.
Contributions made by the Company from July 1, 2002 to June 30, 2003 were $435. In December of 2001, the Company
changed its third party administrator for its defined contribution plan and modified the plan year to end on December 31,
from the previous March 31 ending date. Contributions made by the Company from April 1, 2001 through June 30, 2002,
totaled $573. Company contributions for the plan year ending March 2001 were $926.
14. Related Party Transactions
The Company has an agreement with the Spectrum Group, Inc. whereby Spectrum will provide management services to the
Company through December 2005 at an annual fee plus certain allocated and out of pocket expenses. The Company’s
chairman is also the chairman, president and sole shareholder of Spectrum. Services provided include consultation and
direct management assistance with respect to operations, strategic planning and other aspects of the business of the
Company. Fees and expenses paid to Spectrum for these services under the agreement amounted to $795, $764 and $968 for
the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. In fiscal 2001, a performance bonus was awarded in the amount
of $408 and paid to Spectrum in July of 2001.
During fiscal 2000, the Company engaged ABN AMRO (formerly ING Barings) to assist in the divestiture of its Lighting
business. Upon the completion of the sale of this business (see Note 3) in June of fiscal year 2001, fees of $1,020 were paid
to ABN AMRO. One of the Company’s directors was a principal at ABN AMRO Inc. during fiscal year 2001.
The Company leases two buildings owned by a former executive’s wife. This executive was in charge of one of the
Company’s divisions until January 2003, when his employment with Magnetek was terminated. The Company paid $314 in
lease payments for the buildings during fiscal 2003.
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15. Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities consisted of the following at June 30:

Salaries, wages and related items
Insurance
Warranty
Income taxes
Other

2003

2002

$ 3,572
2,941
503
31
6,405

$ 6,309
4,148
368
141
7,593

$13,452

$18,559

The Company offers warranties for certain products that it manufactures, with the warranty term generally ranging from
one to two years.
Warranty reserves are established for costs expected to be incurred after the sale and delivery of products under warranty,
based mainly on known product failures and historical experience. Changes in the warranty reserve for fiscal 2003 were as
follows:
Warranty
Reserve
Balance at June 30, 2002
Additions charged to earnings
Use of reserve
Other – acquisition of Telemotive

$368
208
(283)
210

Balance at June 30, 2003

$503

16. Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Changes in operating assets and liabilities of continuing operations were as follows:
Year ended June 30

2003

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in prepaids and other current assets
(Increase) decrease in other operating assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Decrease in accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in deferred income taxes
Increase (decrease) in other operating liabilities

2002

2001

$(3,976) $ 11,079 $ (1,077)
(7,220)
5,240
(8,632)
(940)
2,370
6,284
4,338
(4,749) (13,020)
9,345
(9,595)
(8,120)
(6,640) (15,193)
(6,400)
6,083
(5,309) (10,683)
1,102
(2,075)
38

Cash paid for interest and income taxes:
Interest
Income taxes

$ 2,092

$(18,232) $(41,610)

$ 1,022
$ 3,903

$
661
$ 5,168

$ 8,348
$
695

2003

2002

17. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
Accumulated other comprehensive loss consisted of the following at June 30:

Minimum pension liability
Foreign curreny translation adjustments

$ (92,681) $(56,964)
(15,385) (22,472)
$(108,066) $(79,436)

The accumulated other comprehensive loss related to the minimum pension liability is net of tax benefits of $17,000.
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18. Business Segment and Geographic Information
The Company currently operates within a single business segment, Digital Power Products. Within the segment there exists
two product categories, components and systems. The Company sells its products primarily to large original equipment
manufacturers and distributors. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions
and generally requires no collateral. The Company has a single customer, Merloni, whose purchases represented 11% of the
Company’s total revenue in fiscal year 2003. In addition, the Company has another customer, IBM, whose purchases
represented 8%, 9%, and 13% of the Company’s total revenues in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Outstanding receivables with these two largest customers were 31%, 8% and 6% of the total receivables of the Company as
of fiscal year-end 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. With the exception of these accounts, management believes that there
is no significant concentration of credit risk.
During the year ended June 30, 2003, sales of components were $117,138 and sales of systems were $84,644. Sales of
components were $96,509 and sales of systems were $91,715 for the year ended June 30, 2002. During the year ended
June 30, 2001, sales of components were $157,377 and sales of systems were $140,883 (including $45,516 related to a
divested business).
Information with respect to the Company’s foreign subsidiaries follows:
For the year ended June 30
Sales
Operating income
Identifiable assets
Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization

2003

2002

2001

$87,388
642
116,103
7,264
6,352

$57,535
2,112
83,085
4,694
7,152

$81,690
9,764
89,782
6,208
7,029

Operating income for foreign subsidiaries does not include any allocation of corporate costs incurred in the United States.
Sales by foreign subsidiaries include only sales of products to customers outside of the U.S.
Export sales from the United States were $8,889, $6,948 and $10,655 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
19. Quarterly Results (unaudited)
2003 quarter ended

Sept. 30

Dec. 31

Net sales
Gross profit
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Net income (loss)
Per common share:
Basic:
Net income (loss)
Diluted:
Net income (loss)

$42,826
9,784
9,649
$15,743

$ 51,268 $53,223 $54,465
6,242
10,330
10,627
(721)
(1,308)
–
$(40,185) $ (5,410) $ (4,992)

$

0.67

$

(1.71) $ (0.23) $ (0.21)

$

0.67

$

(1.71) $ (0.23) $ (0.21)

2002 quarter ended

Sept. 30

Dec. 31

Mar. 31

June 30

Net sales
Gross profit
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Net income (loss)
Per common share:
Basic:
Net income (loss)
Diluted:
Net income (loss)

$52,546
11,840
664
$ 1,082

$47,087
10,931
284
$ 464

$44,444
10,527
186
$ 302

$44,237
10,263
(234)
$ (440)

$

0.05

$

0.02

$

0.01

$ (0.02)

$

0.05

$

0.02

$

0.01

$ (0.02)

Mar. 31

June 30

The quarter ended September 30 fiscal year 2003 includes a $27,771 ($17,218 after-tax) gain from termination of the
Company’s retiree medical plan.
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The quarter ended December 31 fiscal year 2003 includes after-tax inventory write-down charges of $4,679 and goodwill and
other asset impairment charges of $34,358. All of these charges related to the Company’s telecom business.
The quarter ended March 31 fiscal year 2003 includes a $3,275 after-tax charge for settlement of litigation.
The quarter ended June 30 fiscal year 2003 includes a $997 after tax loss on the sale of the Company’s telecom service
business. The sale was completed subsequent to June 30, 2003 and the actual loss incurred approximated the recorded loss.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Magnetek, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Magnetek, Inc. as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended June 30, 2003. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Magnetek, Inc. at June 30, 2003 and 2002 and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States.
Ernst & Young LLP
Woodland Hills, California
August 20, 2003
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PART I
ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
General
Magnetek, Inc. (‘‘Magnetek’’ or ‘‘the Company’’) supplies digital power-electronic products used in
information technology, industrial, communications, alternative energy, consumer and other markets.
These products usually take the form of sub-systems. They are sold directly or through agents to
original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) for incorporation into their products, to system integrators
and value-added resellers for assembly and installation in end-user systems, and to distributors for
resale to OEMs, contractors and end users for repair and replacement purposes. Founded in July 1984
and listed on the New York Stock Exchange in July 1989 (NYSE: MAG), Magnetek operates six
factories in North America, two in Europe and one in China, together employing approximately 1,700
people worldwide. The Company operates in a single segment called Digital Power Products, which
includes two broad product lines, Components and Systems.
Digital Power Products
General. According to MicroTech Consultants, a power industry research firm, Magnetek ranks
among the world’s 15 largest independent makers of OEM power supplies. The Company is an
acknowledged innovator in power-electronic sub-systems design, thermal management technology and
the application of microprocessors and software in digital power-electronic products. International sales
accounted for approximately 48% of the Company’s net sales. One single customer, Merloni
Elettrodomestici, accounted for 11% of the Company’s net revenues in fiscal 2003.
Components. Embedded power products (components) accounted for approximately 60% of
Magnetek’s net sales in fiscal 2003. The Company’s power components, which are sold to original
equipment manufacturers for installation in their products, include: Ac-to-Dc switching power supplies,
Ac-to-Dc rectifiers/battery chargers, Dc-to-Dc power converters, Dc-to-Ac power inverters and
peripheral component interconnects (PCIs). These products are used primarily in telecommunications,
data-processing and storage, digital imaging, semiconductor processing and testing equipment, medical
instrumentation and home appliances. Principal customers include Merloni, IBM, Siemens, Motorola,
Alcatel and Ericsson.
Systems. Integrated power products (systems) accounted for approximately 40% of the Company’s
net sales in fiscal 2003. Magnetek’s systems consist primarily of programmable motion control and
power conditioning systems. They include alternating current (Ac) and direct current (Dc) variablefrequency motor drives (VFDs), fuel cell power inverters and telecom power plants. The Company is
North America’s largest supplier of VFDs and related software and accessories for controlling overhead
cranes, hoists and elevators. Principal customers include the world’s leading elevator and mining
machinery builders and most of the industrial crane and hoist companies in North America. Magnetek
is the world’s largest builder of power conditioners for stationary fuel cells. The Company’s principal
customer for these products is United Technologies. The Company’s power systems also include
complete Dc power systems for telecom and networking applications. Principal customers for these
systems include Verizon, Nortel, U.S. Cellular and T-Mobile.
Backlog. Backlog as of June 30, 2003 was $58.3 million versus $53.4 million at the end of fiscal
2002. The Increase in backlog reflects improvement in overall economic activity and specific growth in
consumer markets. Magnetek expects that all of the $58.3 million backlog will be filled during fiscal
2004.
Competition. Magnetek’s primary competitors include Delta Electronics, Emerson/Astec/APS,
Artesyn Technologies, Invensys/Lambda, Power-One, Celestica, C&D Technologies, SL Industries, Tyco,
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Marconi/Lorain, Yaskawa, KCI/Konecranes, OMRON, KEB, Peco II, Vicor, and Basler. Some of these
companies have substantially greater financial, marketing and other resources, larger product portfolios
and greater brand recognition than Magnetek.
Competitive Strengths
Management believes that Magnetek benefits most from competitive advantages in the following
areas:
Technological Capabilities. Magnetek emphasizes and leverages its ability to provide customdesigned and customized solutions for power and motion control applications through digital powerelectronic technology. The Company recruits top talent from universities that stress power electronics in
their curricula, and its technical personnel possess substantial expertise in disciplines central to digital
power systems. These include analog-to-digital circuit design, thermal management technology, and the
application of microprocessors, digital signal processors and software algorithms in the development of
‘‘smart’’ power products.
Customer Relationships. Magnetek has established long-term relationships with major
manufacturers of data-processing and telecommunications equipment and systems, business machines,
medical electronics, fuel cells, cranes and hoists, mining equipment and elevators, among others. The
Company believes that these relationships have resulted from its responsiveness, its readiness to meet
special customer requirements based on innovative technology, the quality and cost-effectiveness of its
products, its commitment to stand behind its products, and its after-sale service. As a supplier of
custom and customized products and systems, maintenance and development of customer relationships
are important strategic priorities of the Company.
Manufacturing and Systems Integration. Magnetek competes as a high-quality, cost-effective
supplier of digital power subsystems that are incorporated into customers’ products, systems and
operations. The Company has taken steps to enhance its competitive position by locating new
production facilities in low-cost labor areas, implementing demand-flow and cellular manufacturing
techniques, and investing in state-of-the-art manufacturing capabilities, such as surface-mount
machinery and advanced electronic test equipment, to enhance its product quality and reliability. The
Company also integrates its power-electronic sub-systems into complete systems for providing power
and control for certain end-use markets and customers, and believes that its system-integration
capability represents an advantage, especially in the industrial, alternative energy and
telecommunications markets in which it competes.
Product Breadth and Market Diversity. Magnetek provides a broad diversity of products in each of
its product lines. Since product breadth is an important consideration for many customers and
distributors in their selection of suppliers, the Company’s breadth of product offerings has been an
advantage in penetrating and maintaining OEM relationships and in establishing channel partnerships.
Magnetek also addresses a variety of end-markets and a wide range of customers in the belief that
reduction of dependence on a limited number of markets or customers both reduces the Company’s
susceptibility to economic cycles and increases its prospects for profitable growth.
Competitive Weaknesses
Management considers the following to be Magnetek’s primary competitive weaknesses:
Brand Recognition. As noted above, Magnetek ranks among the world’s 15 largest independent
manufacturers of OEM power supplies. However, the power products industry is very fragmented, the
Company’s power components business is European-based, and its primary power systems businesses
were acquired relatively recently. Consequently, the ‘‘Magnetek’’ brand name is not as well known in
the important North American market as some of the Company’s competitors’ brands. The Company
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conducted a marketing communications effort to familiarize North American power product customers
with the Magnetek brand in fiscal 2003, and is continuing to rely on the established brand names of its
recently acquired systems businesses until such time as the Magnetek name is better known among
power systems users.
Marketing Channels. Historically, Magnetek has been primarily a manufacturer of custom power
supplies and has not had a broad offering of ‘‘standard’’ products, wherein certain basic features and
form factors are dictated by industry codes. Therefore, while the Company is well known among users
of custom power supplies, it is not as well known among users of standard power products. However,
Magnetek has expanded its product offering in an effort to make product-line breadth a competitive
strength. Armed with this expanded product offering, the Company has been able to retain proven sales
managers, enlist leading sales representative firms, and sign up leading distributors in North America,
Europe and Asia to reach users of industry-standard and modified-standard power products.
Financial Resources. Based on current plans and business conditions, management believes that
Magnetek’s borrowing capacity, together with internally generated cash flows, will be sufficient to fund
the Company’s operations and other commitments. However, some of the Company’s competitors have
substantially greater financial resources than Magnetek.
Restructuring and Current Strategy
Since the mid-1990s, Magnetek has undertaken a series of strategic initiatives to strengthen its
financial position, tighten its business focus and improve its competitiveness. From 1998 through 2001,
a number of electrical commodity product businesses, representing more than three quarters of the
Company’s revenue, were divested (Motors and Generators in 1999 and Standard Drives, Lighting
Ballasts and Component Transformers in 2001). Proceeds from these divestitures were applied to
eliminate the Company’s long-term debt, repurchase Company stock, and make selective product-line
acquisitions.
Magnetek’s strategy is centered on power component innovation, forward integration into systems,
and market diversity. The Company intends to continue to build on its competitive strengths and
strategy by expanding its portfolio of digital power-electronic products through research and
development and expanding its geographic markets. Management believes that attractive growth
opportunities exist in North American and Asian markets for Magnetek embedded power products that
have achieved substantial market positions in Europe, and that attractive growth opportunities may
exist in Europe and Asia for Magnetek integrated power systems that have achieved substantial market
positions in North America.
International Operations
International sales accounted for 48% of Magnetek’s net revenues in fiscal 2003. The Company
defines international sales as sales of products manufactured by its facilities outside the U.S. that are
sold outside of the U.S., as well as sales of products manufactured in the U.S. to purchasers outside of
the U.S. In Europe the Company operates two manufacturing facilities, one in Italy and one in
Hungary, and employs approximately 900 people. The Company also operates a manufacturing facility
in Shen-Zhen, China which employs approximately 200 people.
For the Company’s 2003, 2002, and 2001 fiscal years, revenues derived from domestic sales were
$105.5 million, $123.7 million, and $205.9 million, respectively, and revenues derived from international
sales were $96.3 million, $64.5 million, and $92.3 million, respectively.
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Seasonality
Historically, Magnetek’s business has tended to be seasonal, with the first two quarters of the fiscal
year being somewhat weaker than the last two due primarily to customer plant closures during holidays
and traditional vacation periods. The first fiscal quarter (July-September) includes plant closures
typically lasting up to two weeks in July in North America and throughout the month of August in
Europe. The second fiscal quarter (September-December) includes religious and year-end holidays in
both North America and Europe. Also, customers who budget on a calendar-year basis typically begin
spending on new programs in January with many programs scheduled for completion prior to the
summer vacation period, making the January-June period (the second half of Magnetek’s fiscal year)
stronger than the July-December period. Management estimates that, all else being equal, seasonality
may create a 10-20% differential between the Company’s fiscal first- and second-half revenues.
Suppliers and Raw Materials
Virtually all materials and components purchased by the Company are available from multiple
suppliers. During fiscal 2003, raw materials purchases accounted for approximately 62% of the
Company’s cost of sales. Production of digital power products depends heavily on various electronic
components. The Company seeks to obtain competitive pricing on these raw materials by utilizing
multiple suppliers available to its North American, European and Asian operations, leveraging its
combined purchasing requirements, and utilizing internet sources when appropriate.
Based on analyses of the costs and benefits of its level of vertical integration, Magnetek is
continuing to increase its outsourcing of certain materials and component parts that previously have
been produced internally.
Research and Development
Magnetek’s research and development activities, which are conducted primarily at advanced
development centers in Valdarno, Italy, Chatsworth, California and Menomonee Falls, Wisconsin, are
directed toward developing new products, improving existing products and customizing or modifying
products to meet customers’ specific needs. Total research and development expenditures were
approximately $11.1 million, $9.8 million and $9.4 million respectively, for the Company’s 2003, 2002
and 2001 fiscal years.
Intellectual Property
Magnetek holds numerous patents, trademarks and copyrights, and believes that it holds or
licenses all of the patent, trademark, copyright and other intellectual property rights necessary to
conduct its business. The Company generally relies upon patents, copyrights, trademarks and trade
secret laws to establish and maintain its proprietary rights in its technology and products. There can be
no assurance that any of its patents, trademarks or other intellectual property rights will not be
challenged, invalidated or circumvented, or that any rights granted thereunder will provide competitive
advantages to the Company. In addition, there can be no assurance that patents will be issued from
pending patent applications filed by the Company, or that claims allowed on any future patents will be
sufficiently broad to protect Magnetek’s technology. Further, the laws of some foreign countries may
not permit the protection of Magnetek’s proprietary rights to the same extent as do the laws of the
United States. Although the Company believes the protection afforded by its patents, patent
applications, trademarks and copyrights has value, the rapidly changing technology in the digital power
products industry and shortened product life cycles make Magnetek’s future success dependent
primarily on the innovative skills, technological expertise, research and development and management
abilities of its employees rather than on patent, copyright, and trademark protection.
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Employees
As of September 1, 2003, the Company had approximately 700 salaried employees and
approximately 1,000 hourly employees, of whom approximately 200 were covered by collective
bargaining agreements with various unions. The Company believes that its relationships with its
employees are favorable.
Available Information
The Company’s Internet address is www.magnetek.com. The Company’s annual reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to
these reports that are filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are available free of charge
at or through the Company’s website.
Environmental Matters – General
From time to time, the Company discovered the existence of hazardous substances at certain
facilities associated with previously owned businesses and responded as necessary to bring the facilities
into compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Upon sale of the businesses, the Company
agreed, in some cases, to indemnify the buyers against environmental claims associated with the
divested operations, subject to various conditions and limitations. Remediation activities, including
those related to the Company’s indemnification obligations, did not involve material expenditures
during the fiscal year 2003.
The Company has also been identified by the United States Environmental Protection Agency and
certain state agencies as a potentially responsible party for cleanup costs associated with alleged past
waste disposal practices at several previously owned facilities and offsite locations. Its remediation
activities as a potentially responsible party were not material in the fiscal year 2003. Although the
materiality of future expenditures for environmental activities may be affected by the level and type of
contamination, the extent and nature of cleanup activities required by governmental authorities, the
nature of the Company’s alleged connection to the contaminated sites, the number and financial
resources of other potentially responsible parties, the availability of indemnification rights against third
parties and the identification of additional contaminated sites, the Company’s estimated share of
liability, if any, for environmental remediation, including its indemnification obligations, is not expected
to be material.
Century Electric (McMinnville, Tennessee)
Prior to the Company’s purchase of Century Electric, Inc. (‘‘Century Electric’’) in 1986, Century
Electric acquired a business from Gould Inc. (‘‘Gould’’) in May 1983 that included a leasehold interest
in a fractional horsepower electric motor manufacturing facility located in McMinnville, Tennessee.
Gould agreed to indemnify Century Electric from and against liabilities and expenses arising out of the
handling and cleanup of certain waste materials, including but not limited to cleaning up any
polychlorinated biphenyls (‘‘PCBs’’) at the McMinnville facility (the ‘‘1983 Indemnity’’). The presence
of PCBs and other substances, including solvents, in the soil and in the groundwater underlying the
facility and in certain offsite soil, sediment and biota samples has been identified. The McMinnville
plant is listed as a Tennessee Inactive Hazardous Waste Substance Site and plant employees were
notified of the presence of contaminants at the facility. Gould has completed an interim remedial
excavation and disposal of onsite soil containing PCBs and a preliminary investigation and cleanup of
certain onsite and offsite contamination. The Company believes the cost of further investigation and
remediation (including ancillary costs) are covered by the 1983 Indemnity. The Company sold its
leasehold interest in the McMinnville plant in August 1999 and while the Company believes that Gould
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will continue to perform substantially under its indemnity obligations, Gould’s substantial failure to
perform such obligations could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, cash
flows or results of operations.
Effect of Fruit of the Loom Bankruptcy
The Company acquired the stock of Universal Manufacturing Company (‘‘Universal’’) from a
predecessor of Fruit of the Loom (‘‘FOL’’), and the predecessor agreed to indemnify the Company
against certain environmental liabilities arising from pre-acquisition activities. Environmental liabilities
covered by the indemnification agreement include completion of additional cleanup activities, if any, at
the Bridgeport, Connecticut facility (sold in connection with the sale of the transformer business in
June 2001) and defense and indemnification against liability related to offsite disposal locations where
Magnetek may have a share of potential response costs. In 1999 FOL filed a petition for
Reorganization under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code and the Company filed a proof of claim in
the proceeding for obligations related to the environmental indemnification agreement. In
November 2001, the Company and FOL entered into an agreement involving the allocation of certain
potential tax credits and Magnetek withdrew its claims in the bankruptcy proceeding. Although the
Company believes that FOL has substantially completed the obligations required by the indemnification
agreement, its ability to set aside any remaining obligations to the states of Connecticut and New
Jersey through bankruptcy, or the discovery of additional environmental contamination at the
Bridgeport facility could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results
of operations.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Magnetek’s headquarters and each of its manufacturing facilities for the continuing operations of
the Company are listed below, each of which is leased, except for Valdarno, Italy. The Valdarno facility
is owned by the Company’s Italian subsidiary, Magnetek SpA.
Location

Chatsworth, California . . . . .
Dallas, Texas . . . . . . . . . . . .
Greenville, Ohio . . . . . . . . . .
Los Angeles, California . . . . .
Menomonee Falls, Wisconsin .
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania . . . .
Pomaz, Hungary . . . . . . . . . .
Salgotarjan, Hungary . . . . . .
Valdarno, Italy . . . . . . . . . . .
Mississauga, Canada . . . . . . .
Shenzhen, China . . . . . . . . .
Glendale Heights, Illinois . . .

.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
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.
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.

Lease Term

Approximate
Size (Sq.Ft.)

2004
2005
2003
2005
2004
2003
2004
2006
—
2006
2008
2006

48,000
101,000
16,000
5,000
74,000
8,911
44,000
118,000
183,000
17,600
65,000
50,000

Principal Use

Power supply manufacturing
Telecom systems manufacturing
Telecom systems manufacturing
Corporate headquarters
Industrial controls manufacturing
Industrial controls manufacturing
Power supply manufacturing
Power supply manufacturing
Power supply manufacturing
Industrial controls manufacturing
Power supply manufacturing
Industrial controls manufacturing

In July 2003, the Company divested its Telecom Service business, which included the leased
property in Greenville, Ohio. The Company believes its facilities are in satisfactory condition and are
adequate for its present operations. See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements with
respect to facility equipment subject to encumbrances.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Litigation—Product Liability
The Company is a party to a number of product liability lawsuits, all of which have arisen in
connection with discontinued business operations of Magnetek. When the Company sold off these
business operations, it agreed to defend and indemnify the different purchasers of these operations in
respect of certain product liability claims. We are presently defending a number or product liability
claims in connection with these indemnification obligations. After December 15, 2003, none of these
purchasers will be entitled to make any further claims against the Company under these
indemnification obligations. We will, however, remain liable for valid claims made before that date. All
of the pending product liability cases are being aggressively defended by the Company, and
management believes that its insurers will bear all liability, if any, that exceeds applicable deductibles,
and that none of these proceedings individually or in the aggregate will have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.
Magnetek has been named, along with numerous other defendants, in asbestos-related lawsuits.
The Company has never produced asbestos-containing products and is either contractually indemnified
against liability for asbestos-related claims or believes that it has no liability for such claims, all of
which arise from business operations the Company acquired but no longer owns. While the outcome of
these cases cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company is aggressively seeking to be dismissed
from the proceedings and does not believe the proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will have a
material adverse effect on its financial position or results of operations.
Litigation—Patent Infringement
In April 1998, Ole K. Nilssen filed a lawsuit in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of
Illinois alleging infringement by Magnetek of seven of his patents pertaining to electronic ballast
technology, and seeking unspecified damages and injunctive relief to preclude the Company from
making, using or selling products allegedly infringing his patents. The Company denied that its products
infringed any valid patent and filed a response asserting affirmative defenses, as well as a counterclaim
for a judicial declaration that its products do not infringe the patents asserted by Mr. Nilssen and also
that the asserted patents are invalid. In April 2003, the lawsuit and counterclaims were dismissed with
prejudice and both parties agreed to submit limited issues in dispute to binding arbitration before an
arbitrator with a relevant technical background. Settlement discussions have occurred from time to
time, and although the Company will continue to assert what it believes are strong defenses at
arbitration, an unfavorable decision could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
position and results of operations.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to the stockholders of the Company during the quarter ended June 30,
2003.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS
The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices of the Company’s Common Stock
during each quarter of fiscal 2002 and 2003:
Quarter Ending

High

Low

September 30, 2002
December 31, 2002 .
March 31, 2003 . . . .
June 30, 2003 . . . . .
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.
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.
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.
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.
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.
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.
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.
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10.05
6.09
5.35
3.20

2.65
3.28
2.32
1.90

September 30, 2001
December 31, 2001 .
March 31, 2002 . . . .
June 30, 2002 . . . . .
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12.69
10.49
12.00
12.73

8.81
7.80
8.91
9.42

The Company’s Common Stock is listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the
ticker symbol ‘‘MAG.’’ As of September 5, 2003 there were 221 record holders of Magnetek’s Common
Stock.
Magnetek has not paid any cash dividends on its Common Stock and does not anticipate paying
cash dividends in the near future. The ability of the Company to pay dividends on its Common Stock is
restricted by provisions in the Company’s 2003 bank loan agreement, which provides that the Company
may not declare or pay any dividend or make any distribution with respect to its capital stock. The
Company did not repurchase any of its Common Stock during fiscal year 2003.
On March 2, 2001, the Company issued an aggregate of 597,691 shares of Common Stock to the
shareholders of ADS Power Resource, Inc., in a privately negotiated transaction involving fewer than
35 persons as part of the merger consideration paid by Magnetek in connection with its acquisition of
ADS Power Resources, Inc. The shares were issued at a deemed issue price of $11.16 per share;
approximately $6.7 million in the aggregate. The shares are ‘‘restricted securities’’ for purposes of
Rule 144 of the Securities Act and each certificate representing any of such shares states on its face
that it represents stock that has not been registered under the Securities Act and is not freely
transferable.
On June 27, 2002 the Company contributed 900,000 shares of its Common Stock into the
Magnetek, Inc. Flexcare Plus Retirement Pension Plan. The value of that contribution was $9.89 per
share and totaled approximately $8.9 million in the aggregate.
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The information called for by this Item 6 is hereby incorporated by reference to the section of the
Company’s 2003 Annual Report entitled ‘‘Selected Financial Data.’’
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The information called for by this Item 7 is hereby incorporated by reference to the section of the
Company’s 2003 Annual Report entitled ‘‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.’’
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
The information called for by this Item 7A is hereby incorporated by reference to the section of
the Company’s 2003 Annual Report entitled ‘‘Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk.’’
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The information called for by this Item 8 is hereby incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Financial Statements and the corresponding Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors in
the Company’s 2003 Annual Report.
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Magnetek had no disagreements with its independent accountants in fiscal 2003 with respect to
accounting and financial disclosure, and has not changed its independent accountants during the two
most recent fiscal years.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Magnetek has evaluated, under the supervision and with the participation of its management,
including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the effectiveness of the design and
operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as that term is defined under
Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) and the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting (as that term is defined under Rule 13a-15(f) and Rule 15d-15(f) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). The controls and procedures are designed to ensure that material
information relating to the Company, including its subsidiaries, is made known to the Company.
Procedures related to internal control over financial reporting are designed to provide reasonable
assurances regarding the reliability of the Company’s reporting and preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Based upon its evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely alerting them to material
information relating to the Company and required to be included in its periodic SEC filings.
There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the
Company’s fiscal fourth quarter ended June 30, 2003 that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
The information regarding the Company’s directors called for by this Item 10 is hereby
incorporated by reference to the sections of the Company’s 2003 Proxy Statement entitled ‘‘The Board
of Directors’’ and ‘‘Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance’’.
Supplemental Information—Executive Officers of the Company
The following table sets forth certain information regarding the current executive officers of the
Company.
Name

Age

Position

Andrew G. Galef . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

70

Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Antonio Canova, Ph.D . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

61

Executive Vice President, Power Electronics

Alexander Levran, Ph.D . . . . . . . . . . . . .

53

Executive Vice President, Technology

Peter M. McCormick . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
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Executive Vice President, Industrial Controls

David P. Reiland . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

49

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Paul Schwartzbaum . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

41

Executive Vice President, Telecom Power

John P. Colling, Jr. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

47

Vice President and Treasurer

Tina D. McKnight . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

45

Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Mr. Galef has been the Chairman of the Board of Directors since July 1984 and the President and
Chief Executive Officer since May 4, 1999. Mr. Galef previously served as Chief Executive Officer of
the Company from September 1993 until June 1996. He is the sole shareholder of The Spectrum
Group, Inc., a private investment and management firm, and has served as its President since its
incorporation in California in 1978, and as its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since 1987.
Dr. Canova has been Executive Vice President, with responsibility for the Company’s power
electronics business since October 1993. He has served as Managing Director of Magnetek S.p.A. in
Italy since March 1991. Prior to that, Dr. Canova was the Managing Director of Plessey S.p.A. from
1988 until March 1991 when Plessey S.p.A. was acquired by Magnetek. From 1969 to 1988, Dr. Canova
served as General Manager of Plessey S.p.A.
Dr. Levran has been Executive Vice President, Technology since January 1995 and was Vice
President, Technology from July 1993 until January 1995. Prior to joining the Company, Dr. Levran was
Vice President of Engineering and Technology for EPE Technologies, Inc., a subsidiary of Groupe
Schneider, from 1991 to June 1993. From 1981 to 1991, Dr. Levran held various engineering
management positions with Teledyne Inet, a subsidiary of Teledyne, Inc., most recently as Vice
President of Engineering.
Mr. McCormick has been responsible for the Company’s Industrial Controls business division since
July 2002, first as Vice President and later as an Executive Vice President. From November 1999 until
July 2002, Mr. McCormick was President of Industrial Controls. Prior to that, he was Vice President of
Operations for the drives group from September 1998 until November 1999 and Vice President of the
Custom Products business group from June 1996 until September 1998.
Mr. Reiland has been Executive Vice President since July 1993 and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company since July 1988. Mr. Reiland assumed temporary responsibility for the telecom business
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division from January 2003, following Mr. Pratt’s departure, until April 2003 when Mr. Schwarzbaum
joined the Company. Mr. Reiland was Senior Vice President from July 1989 until July 1993. He was
Controller of the Company from August 1986 to October 1993, and was Vice President, Finance from
July 1987 to July 1989. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Reiland was an Audit Manager with Arthur
Andersen & Co. where he served in various capacities since 1980.
Mr. Schwarzbaum joined the Company as Executive Vice President and as President of the
Telecom Power Group in April 2003. He joined Magnetek after three years with Corning Precision
Lens, Inc., most recently serving as its Vice President and General Manager of the Consumer Video
Optics business. Prior to that, Mr. Schwarzbaum held key management assignments with Zebra
Technologies Corporation, a leading supplier of bar code printing systems, as well as product and
marketing leadership positions with Mettler-Toledo, Inc. Mr. Schwarzbaum was also a principal of a
boutique strategy and management consultancy based in Taipei Taiwan, where he lived and worked for
three years. He began his career as a financial analyst with Charterhouse Japhet plc.
Mr. Colling served as Vice President of the Company from July 1990 until he resigned as an
officer in April 2003. Mr. Colling was the Treasurer of the Company from June 1989 until termination
of his employment in August 2003 due to relocation of his responsibilities to the Corporate offices in
Los Angeles, California. From July 1987 to June 1989, Mr. Colling was Assistant Treasurer. Prior to
joining Magnetek, Mr. Colling was the Assistant Treasurer of Century Electric, where he served in
various capacities from August 1981 until its acquisition by Magnetek in July 1987.
Ms. McKnight joined the Company in September 2000 as Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary. Prior to joining the Magnetek, Ms. McKnight was Vice President and Assistant General
Counsel of creditcards.com from 1999 to 2000 and Vice President, Senior Counsel and Assistant
Secretary of Great Western Bank from 1990 to 1999. Ms. McKnight was an attorney with the law firms
of Brobeck, Phleger & Harrison in Los Angeles, California from 1987 until 1990 and with Peterson,
Ross, Schloerb & Seidel in Los Angeles, California from 1985 until 1987.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information called for by this Item 11 is hereby incorporated by reference to the section of
the Company’s 2003 Proxy Statement entitled ‘‘Executive Compensation’’.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
The information called for by this Item 12 regarding beneficial ownership by certain persons of
more than five percent of any class of the Company’s voting securities and by the Company’s directors
and executive officers is hereby incorporated by reference to the section of the Company’s 2003 Proxy
Statement entitled ‘‘Beneficial Ownership’’.
Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans
The Company has no equity compensation plans or individual compensation arrangements under
which equity securities of the Company are issuable that have not been approved by its shareholders.
The following table reflects information as of the end of fiscal year 2003 with respect to securities
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issuable under the Company’s equity compensation plans (including individual compensation
arrangements), all of which securities are shares of the Company’s common stock.

Plan Category

Equity Compensation Plans
Approved By Security
Holders . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Equity Compensation Plans
Not Approved by
Security Holders . . . . . .
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance under
Equity Compensation Plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column (a))
(c)

Number of Securities to be
Issued Upon Exercise of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights
(a)

Weighted-Average Exercise
Price of Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights
(b)

6,517,361

$10.27

0

0

0

6,517,361

$10.27

13,838,772

13,838,772(1)

(1) Excluding the 6,517,361 noted in column (a).
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
The information required by this Item 13 is hereby incorporated by reference to the sections of the
Company’s 2003 Proxy Statement entitled ‘‘Transactions With Management and Others’’ and
‘‘Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation’’.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The information called for by this Item 14 is hereby incorporated by reference to the section of
the Company’s 2003 Proxy Statement entitled ‘‘Independent Public Accountants’’.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements, Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules and
Exhibits:

1.

2.

EDGARized
Form 10-K Page

Annual Report to
Stockholders Page

Consolidated Statements of Operations for Years
Ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

—

11

Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2003 and 2002 . . . . . . . .

—

12

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for
Years Ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

—

13

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for
Years Ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

—

14

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

—

15

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors . . . . . . . . .

—

32

Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors . . . . . . . . .

53

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . .

54

All other financial statement schedules have been omitted because of the absence of conditions
under which they are required or applicable, or because the information required is included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes.
3.

Exhibit Index

The following exhibits are filed as part of this Annual Report Form 10-K, or are incorporated
herein by reference. Where an exhibit is incorporated by reference, the number which precedes the
description of the exhibit indicates the documents to which the cross-reference is made.
Exhibit No.

Note

Description of Exhibit

3.1

(1) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, as filed with the Delaware
Secretary of State on November 21, 1989.

3.2

(2) By-laws of the Company, as amended and restated.

4.1

(5) Registration Rights Agreement dated as of April 29, 1991 among the Company,
Andrew G. Galef, Frank Perna, Jr. and the other entities named therein.

4.2

(7) Registration Rights Agreement dated as of June 28, 1996 by and between the
Company and U.S. Trust Company of California, N.A.

4.3

(25) Registration Rights Agreement dated as of March 2, 2001 by and between the
Company and each ADS Shareholder.

4.4

(12) Rights Agreement dated as of April 30, 2003 between the Company and The Bank
of New York, as Rights Agent.
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Exhibit No.

Note

Description of Exhibit

10.1

(8) Second Amended and Restated 1989 Incentive Stock Compensation Plan of
Magnetek, Inc. (‘‘1989 Plan’’).

10.2

(7) Amendment No. 1 to 1989 Plan.

10.3

(7) Standard Terms and Conditions Relating to Non-Qualified Stock Options, revised as
of July 24, 1996, pertaining to the 1989 Plan.

10.4

(7) Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement Pursuant to the Second Amended
and Restated 1989 Incentive Stock Compensation Plan of the Company.

10.5

(9) Magnetek, Inc. 1997 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (the ‘‘DSOP’’).

10.6
10.7

(10) First Amendment to the DSOP dated as of July 26, 2000.
(6) 1991 Discretionary Director Incentive Compensation Plan of the Company.

10.8

(11) 1999 Stock Incentive Plan of the Company (the ‘‘1999 Plan’’).

10.9

(11) 2000 Employee Stock Plan of the Company (the ‘‘2000 Plan’’).

10.10

(11) Standard Terms and Conditions Relating to Non-Qualified Stock Options, effective as
of October 19, 1999, pertaining to the 1999 Plan and the 2000 Plan.

10.11

(13) Magnetek, Inc. Amended and Restated Director Compensation and Deferral
Investment Plan (the ‘‘DDIP’’).

10.12

(28) Amendment to the DDIP dated April 17, 2002.

10.13

(29) 2002 Magnetek, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

10.14

(14) Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement between the Company and David P. Reiland.

10.15

(15) Executive Management Agreement dated as of July 1, 1994, by and between the
Company and The Spectrum Group, Inc.

10.16

(16) Amendment dated as of January 25, 1995 to the Executive Management Agreement
between the Company and The Spectrum Group, Inc.

10.17

(17) Amendment No. 1 to the Executive Management Agreement dated as of June 30,
2000 between the Company and The Spectrum Group, Inc.

10.18

**

Amendment No. 2 to the Executive Management Agreement dated as of
December 12, 2002 between the Company and The Spectrum Group, Inc.

10.19

(18) Change of Control Agreement dated October 20, 1998 between Antonio Canova and
the Company.

10.20

(18) Change of Control Agreement dated October 20, 1998 between Alexander Levran
and the Company.

10.21

(18) Change of Control Agreement dated October 20, 1998 between David P. Reiland and
the Company.

10.22

(19) Change of Control Agreement dated November 1, 2000 between Tina McKnight and
the Company.

10.23
10.24

**

Amendment to Change of Control Agreement dated April 30, 2003 between Tina
McKnight and the Company.

(21) Change of Control Agreement dated December 11, 2002, between Pete McCormick
and the Company.
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Exhibit No.

Note

10.25

**

Description of Exhibit

Change of Control Agreement dated April 30, 2003 between Paul Schwarzbaum and
the Company.

10.26

(20) Tax Agreement dated as of February 12, 1986 between the Company and Farley
Northwest Industries, Inc.

10.27

(23) Credit Agreement dated as of June 17, 2002 among the Company, Banc One Capital
Markets, Inc., Bank One, Kentucky, NA, Wachovia Bank, NA and The Provident
Bank.

10.28

(23) Stock Pledge Agreement dated as of June 17, 2002 by the Company in favor of Bank
One Kentucky, NA.

10.29

(23) Subsidiary Guaranty dated as of June 17, 2002 by Magnetek ADS Power, Inc.,
Magnetek Leasing Corporation, Magnetek Mondel Holding, Inc. and J-TEC, Inc. in
favor of Bank One Kentucky, NA.

10.30

(23) Security Agreement dated as of June 17, 2002 between the Company and Bank One
Kentucky, NA.

10.31

(23) Security Agreement dated as of June 17, 2002 between Magnetek Leasing
Corporation and Bank One Kentucky, NA.

10.32

(23) Security Agreement dated as of June 17, 2002 between Magnetek ADS Power, Inc.
and Bank One Kentucky, NA.

10.33

(23) Security Agreement dated as of June 17, 2002 between Magnetek Mondel
Holding, Inc. and Bank One Kentucky, NA.

10.34

(23) Security Agreement dated as of June 17, 2002 between J-TEC, Inc. and Bank One
Kentucky, NA.

10.35

(17) Lease of Pomaz, Hungary facility.

10.36

(24) Lease of Menomonee Falls, Wisconsin facility dated as of July 23, 1999.

10.37

(27) Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of June 15, 2001 between the Company and
Universal Lighting Technologies, Inc.

10.38

**

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of December 30, 2002 by and among the
Company and MXT Holdings, Inc.

13.1

**

2003 Annual Report.

23.1

**

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors.

31.1

**

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

31.2

**

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

32.1

**

Certification Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. Section 7241.

32.2

**

Certification Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. Section 7241.

** Filed with this Form 10-K.
(1) Previously filed with the Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on August 1, 1991, Commission
File No. 33-41854, and incorporated herein by this reference.
(2) Previously filed with Form 10-Q for quarter ended March 31, 2003.
(5) Previously filed with Form 10-K for Fiscal Year ended June 30, 1991 and incorporated herein by
this reference.
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(6) Previously filed with Form 10-K for Fiscal Year ended June 30, 1992 and incorporated herein by
this reference.
(7) Previously filed with Form 10-K for Fiscal Year ended June 30, 1996 and incorporated herein by
this reference.
(8) Previously filed with Form 10-Q for quarter ended December 31, 1994 and incorporated herein by
this reference.
(9) Previously filed with the Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on February 10, 1998,
Commission File No. 333-45935, and incorporated herein by this reference.
(10) Previously filed with Form 10-Q for quarter ended September 30, 2000 and incorporated herein by
this reference.
(11) Previously filed with Form 10-Q/A for quarter ended September 30, 1999 and incorporated herein
by this reference.
(12) Previously filed with Form 8-K filed May 12, 2003 and incorporated herein by this reference.
(13) Previously filed with the Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on February 10, 1998,
Commission File No. 333-45939, and incorporated herein by this reference.
(14) Previously filed with Form 10-Q for quarter ended March 31, 1997 and incorporated herein by this
reference.
(15) Previously filed with Form 10-Q for quarter ended March 31, 1994 and incorporated herein by this
reference.
(16) Previously filed with Form 10-Q for quarter ended March 31, 1995 and incorporated herein by this
reference.
(17) Previously filed with Form 10-K for fiscal year ended July 2, 2000 and incorporated herein by this
reference.
(18) Previously filed with Form 10-Q for quarter ended December 31, 1998 and incorporated herein by
this reference.
(19) Previously filed with Form 10-Q for quarter ended December 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by
this reference.
(20) Previously filed with Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement filed on February 14, 1986 and
incorporated herein by this reference.
(21) Previously filed with Form 10-Q for Quarter ended December 31, 2002, and incorporated herein
by this reference.
(23) Previously filed with Form 10-K for Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2002 and incorporated herein by
this reference.
(24) Previously filed with Form 10-K for Fiscal Year ended June 27, 1999 and incorporated herein by
this reference.
(27) Previously filed with Form 8-K dated July 2, 2001 and incorporated herein by this reference.
(28) Previously filed with Form 10-Q for quarter ended March 31, 2002 and incorporated herein by this
reference.
(29) Previously filed with Form 10-Q for quarter ended September 30, 2001 and incorporated herein by
this reference.
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(b) Reports on Form 8-K
During the last quarter of fiscal year 2003, the Company filed the following reports on Form 8-K:
Form 8-K filed April 2, 2003 announcing an amendment to the Company’s credit agreement
and a loss to be recorded in connection with a previously disclosed dispute with Bank of
America.
Form 8-K filed April 25, 2003 announcing the Company’s earnings for the quarter ended
March 31, 2003 as Regulation FD disclosure (including attached financial statements).
Form 8-K filed May 12, 2003 announcing the adoption of a stockholder rights plan by the
Company’s Board of Directors.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized in the City of Los Angeles, State of California, on the 29th day of September, 2003.
MAGNETEK, INC.
(Registrant)
/s/ ANDREW G. GALEF
Andrew G. Galef
Chairman of the Board of Directors,
President and Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated:
Signature

/s/ ANDREW G. GALEF
Andrew G. Galef

/s/ THOMAS G. BOREN
Thomas G. Boren
/s/ DEWAIN K. CROSS
Dewain K. Cross
/s/ PAUL J. KOFMEHL
Paul J. Kofmehl
/s/ MITCHELL I. QUAIN
Mitchell I. Quain
/s/ ROBERT E. WYCOFF
Robert E. Wycoff
/s/ DAVID P. REILAND
David P. Reiland

Title

Date

Chairman of the Board of
Directors, President and Chief
Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer)

September 29, 2003

Director

September 29, 2003

Director

September 29, 2003

Director

September 29, 2003

Director

September 29, 2003

Director

September 29, 2003

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

September 29, 2003
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Magnetek, Inc. as of June 30, 2003 and
2002, and for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2003, and have issued our report
thereon dated August 20, 2003 (incorporated by reference elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K). Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in Item 15(a) of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. This schedule is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion based on our audits.
In our opinion, the financial statement schedule referred to above, when considered in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information
set forth therein.
ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Woodland Hills, California
August 20, 2003
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SCHEDULE II
MAGNETEK, INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years ended June 30, 2001, 2002 and 2003
(amounts in thousands)
Balance at
Beginning
of year

Additions
charged to
earnings

Deductions
from
Allowance

Other(a)

Balance
at end
of year

June 30, 2001
Allowance for doubtful receivables . . . . . . . . . . . .

$3,299

$5,088

$(2,172)

$(980)

$5,235

June 30, 2002
Allowance for doubtful receivables . . . . . . . . . . . .

$5,235

$ 946

$(3,816)

$ 67

$2,432

June 30, 2003
Allowance for doubtful receivables . . . . . . . . . . . .

$2,432

$ 248

$ (452)

$ 199

$2,427

(a) Represents primarily opening allowances for doubtful accounts balances of acquired/divested
companies and foreign translation adjustments for the Company’s foreign subsidiaries.
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Board of Directors
Andrew G. Galef

Chairman of the Board, President
& Chief Executive Officer

Thomas G. Boren

Retired Executive Vice President, PG&E Corporation

Dewain K. Cross

Retired Senior Vice President, Finance, Cooper Industries, Inc.

Paul J. Kofmehl

Retired Vice President & Group Executive, IBM.

Mitchell I. Quain

Principal at Charter House Group International, Inc.

Robert E. Wycoff

Retired President, Atlantic Richfield Company

Corporate Officers
Andrew G. Galef

Chairman of the Board, President
& Chief Executive Officer

Antonio Canova

Executive Vice President

Alexander Levran, Ph.D.

Executive Vice President, Technology

Peter M. McCormick

Executive Vice President

David P. Reiland

Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

Paul Schwarzbaum

Executive Vice President

Tina D. McKnight

Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary
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Stockholder Information
10-K Report
Magnetek’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, including the
Company’s financial statements and related schedules for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2003, is included herein beginning on page 33. Exhibits to Magnetek’s Form 10-K have been
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Most of these exhibits are available for
viewing through the SEC’s Edgar website at http://www.sec.gov/cgi-bin/browse-edgar?actiongetcurrent. Other exhibits are available upon request to Magnetek, subject to payment of a
reasonable fee to cover the Company’s cost of furnishing such exhibits. To request an exhibit
from the Company, please contact:

Investor Relations Department
Magnetek, Inc.
10900 Wilshire Boulevard
Suite 850
Los Angeles, CA 90024
Telephone: 1-310-689-1610
Web Site Address: http://www.magnetek.com

Annual Stockholders’ Meeting
Magnetek’s fiscal 2003 stockholders’ meeting will be held on Wednesday, October 29th at
10:00 a.m. Pacific time at 10900 Wilshire Boulevard, Los Angeles, CA 90024.

Stockholders’ Information
The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices of the Company’s Common Stock on
the New York Stock Exchange during each quarter of fiscal 2003.
Quarter Ending

September 30, 2002
December 31, 2002
March 31, 2003 . . .
June 30, 2003 . . . .

.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.

High

Low

10.05
6.09
5.35
3.20

2.65
3.28
2.32
1.90

Magnetek’s Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol
‘‘MAG’’. As of September 5, 2003 there were 221 holders of record of the Company’s Common
Stock. No dividends have been paid on the Common Stock. The Registrar and Transfer Agent for
the Common Stock is The Bank of New York. Telephone Inquiries: 1-800-524-4458.
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